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CORPORATE
PROFILE

Board of Directors

Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

Board Risk Management Committee

liaz ur Rehman Qureshi Chairman
Umer Ighal Sheikh Member
Madeem Amir Chairman
ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi Director ~ Auditors of the Modaraba
Umer lgbal Sheikh Director Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Imran Bashir Director
Samina Afsar Director  Auditors of the Management Company
Khawar Shahid Ansari Director
Shinewing Hameed Chaudhry & Co.
Chief Financial Officer Chartered Accountants
Zeeshan Ahmed Bankers
The Bank of Punjab
Company Secretary NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited
Banklslami Pakistan Limited
iidliesas Raics pat U Microfinance Bank Limited
Registrar
Audit Committee
Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Lid.
Imran Bashir Chairman  H.M House, 7-Bank Square,
ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi Member The Mall, Lahore
Samina Afsar Member Tel : (+92-42) 37235081-2

Human Resource Committee

Samina Afsar
ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Umer Igbal Sheikh

Inran Bashir

Chairperson
Member
Member

Member

Registered Office

Office # 100, 3rd Floor, National Tower,
28-Egerton Road, Lahore,

Postal Code MNo. 54500

PABX : (+92-42) 36365191

FAX : (+92-42) 36365193

E-mail : info@punjabmodaraba.com.pk

URL : www. punjabmodraba.com.pk
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A Whaolly Owned Subsidiary of
The Bank of Punjalb

Our Vision

Connect the Community to
Islamic Mode of Financing

Our Mission

We have committed to pro-
gressively enhance fullyre-
searched i slamic F inancing
Products and shall continue
tom eet ourc urtomers
needs




wiww, jamapuniji. pk

Key features:

&3 Licensed Entities Verification

e Scam meter”

& Jamapunji games*

E Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

E Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

Z Online Quizzes

<
- o

Jama Punji i an Investor
Education initiative of
Securites and Exdhanges
Camrrission of Pakistan

FY Jama
=4 Punji

P IR TSP . £ I PO

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

4l Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from PSX)

EEl Knowledge center
B Risk profiler*
B Financial calculator

@ Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

@ Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

L e f
jamapunji.pk @jamapunji_pk

*Mobile apps are also available for download for android
and ios devices
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SIXYEARS
AT A GLANCE

[Amsunts in ‘000

Restatad

June-19 Jume-20 June-21 December-21 December-i2 December-23
BANALMNCE SHEET
Aulharized Capital 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Equity:
lssuwad, Subscrivad & Faid Up Capital 340,200 340,200 30200 340,200 Fd0, 200 340,200
Reserves 216,603 216,683 218177 HBATT 218177 218477
Subordinated Funds - - - . - R00,000
Un-approgrieted Profit (364, 263) (415, 504) [413.658) 1471,758) (570, 903) (BH0,258)
Tatal 192,600 137,208 144,710 86,618 [12,526) 378,118
Liabilities:
Redermable Capial 446518 1,013,545 1,014,102 1,803,000 1,825,000 1485000
Musharikah Arrangrmants 1,223 622 B4R, 735 535 129 131,101 - -
Acorsed Defarred & Olher Lisbililing 26T 84T 2Rd SR8 254 069 260 GER 218 B42 326 8268
Taolal 1,936 987 1,946,675 1,803,299 2,003, TED 2,043 842 1,811,628
Total Equity & Liabilities 2,129,596 2,083,974 1,243,015 2,090,407 2,031,316 2. 189,747
DOparating Assets:
ljarah Assels 63,711 S0B, 808 450440 331,568 237 G 148,068
Deffarred tax 64,308 54, b 4,399 [sE%cli] 51,046 109,658
Musharikah Investment 857,740 G50, BES GE2 BEG 713,063 B35 178,624
Morabeha Investment 308,264 305443 251 927 184 804 248 848 745 426
Sub Total 1,594,114 1,530,639 1,349,321 1,293,861 1,302,030 1,281,776
Other Assets:
Assels in own use 3,338 3108 AT 3415 4,655 5122
Irvestment in Subsidary 76,500 76,500 76,500 V6,500 76,500 -
Deposits, Prapeymanis & other receivabilas 412618 448 G2 407 232 581,353 631414 B59,304
Cash & Bank Balances 43,025 25,109 111,748 136,278 26,678 33,545
Sulb Tolal 535,482 553,335 508,697 796,546 630,285 B07,971
Tolal Assata 2,120 5B6 2 083,974 1,848 018 2,090 407 2,031,315 2189747
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
Operating Incoms 168,527 187 385 139,449 63,854 150,676,365 244 35741
Othar Income 17,903 10,70 13,573 G482 G0 B33 86 962
Total Income 187,430 190,084 153,023 70,346 211,508 131,319
Operading Expenses 40,4318 45,719 240877 26,722 68,586.13 ¥49,992.20
Financial Charges 150,423 207676 119,205 55,318 220,687 358,391
Management Fae - - - - - -
Tolal Expenses 180,742 253,385 144,082 82,040 200,283 438,383
Profit / loss) before Tasation £ GBE (55,311} 854 (1,352} (61, 344) [153,305)
Taation (A63) L 11,5200 - 5,200 {41,743)
Prafit for the year 6,225 (55,311 7421 {1,353) (BT, 544) {111,582)
DISTRIBUTION:
Cash Dividand[%) & - N =
Bonus (%) - - - -
RATIOS:
Breakup Value (Rs.) 566 4,04 425 2.55 10-37) 11.11
Earming per Cedificate {fs.} 0B {163} 0.22 000 - -
Return an Equity {Rs_) 323 (40_29) 513 -A M-a N-A
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Dear valued Certificate Holders,

| feel pleasure to share my views on behalf of the Board of Directors ("the Board") of Punjab
Modaraba Services (Pvt) Limited for year ended December 31, 2023. | offer my earnest
gratitude to every one of you for your backing.

The year under review was full of challenges in perspective of country's economy, such as high
inflation, critical geopolitical situation, difficult financial environment etc. The focus of the Board
remained on steering the Modaraba through tough time.

During the year, financial reporting and strategic guidance for sustainable growth were priorities
of the Board. As we move into the next year, continuous learning, sustainability and data-driven
decision-making will ensure that our businesses are prepared for the future.”

The Maodaraba hails from a strong financial group led by The Bank of Punjab. The financial
support extended by the Group during year under review to stabilize eguity base of the
Modaraba and improve its liquidity and profitability will enable the Modaraba to show better
performance in coming year,

On governance front, the Board ensures active participation of non-executive and independent
directors in committees. Persons possessing requisite abilities and knowledge are represented
on the Board, Meetings are convened with required guorum, and deliberations and decisions
are comprehensively documented. Adherence to regulatory framework and relevant laws forms
primacy in decision-making.

The Board diligently performs its responsibiliies in accordance with Modaraba Ordinance,
Companies Act, and Corporate Governance Regulations. It offers effective guidance on strategic
matters, oversees management performance and addresses major risk areas. All Directors,
including Independent Directors, actively engage and contribute to decision-making processes.

Leading Board from the front and ensuring meticulous compliance of regulations will be my
prime responsibility as Chairman of the Board. The prioritization of rational mowves in short,
medium and long term periods will be guiding principle for the Management.

| extend my sincere gratitude to regulators, customers, partners, our dedicated team, and all
stakeholders, with special recognition to Registrar Modaraba. | also laud each Board Member
for their steadfast dedication as stewards of the Modaraba.

Yours sincerely,

Madeem Amir

June 24, 2024 —, L
g L
Chalrman
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited, the Management Company
of First Punjab Modaraba, takes great pleasure in presenting 31" Audited Financial Statements for
First Punjab Modaraba for fiscal year ended on December 31, 2023, accompanied by the Auditors'
Report.

Economic Outlook & Future Prospects The geopolitical situation, difficult financial environment
and high inflationary pressures posed significant economic risks for Pakistan's economy.
Devastating floods and political unrest further aggravated the situation. Thus, FY2023 has been a
challenging year for Pakistan's economy. At the beginning of FY2023, the economy confronted
four major challenges that posed threats to Pakistan's socio-economic growth. These challenges
include regaining sustainable macroeconomic stability, reducing poverty, fiscal consolidation, and
addressing weaknesses in the external account.

The overall vision of the government is to achieve high and sustainable GDP growth with price
stability over the medium term. The government is committed to implementing home-grown
macroeconcmic and structural reforms for creating job opportunities and reducing the poverty.
The government is trying to rebuild confidence of investors by addressing macroeconomic
imbalances through an optimal policy mix. At the same time, it is protecting poor people through
adequately funded social safety nets and targeted subsidies.

Financial Highlights The summarized financial results of your modaraba are as follows:

: FY 2023 FY 2022
Particulars s i
Rupees in million

Gross Revenue | 331319 211508
Administrative Expenses (79.992) (69.596)
Finance costs _ (358.390) (220.687) |
Provisions for doubtful receivables (46.241) (2.570)
{Loss) before income tax and levies [ (153.305) | (81.344) |
Income tax and levies 41.744 | (6.198)
{Loss) after tax | []_.11._5_5-1_] | [3_?.55_14} |
Other comprehensive income . 2.206 | 0.334
Accumulated loss | (680.257) | (570.903) |
Earnings per certificate (Rupee) (3.28) | (2.57)

| Total assets | 2,189.747 |  2,031.315 |
Equity 378.119 (12.526)
Total liabilities 1,811.628 | 2,043,842

The Modaraba demonstrated a notable growth of 56.65% in operating income. Total income for
the year was Rs. 331.319 million as compared to Rs, 211.508 million in the corresponding year.
However, due to substantial increase in the KIBOR rate and additional financing obtained from the
parent company, finance costs were significantly increased to Rs. 358.390 million which adversely
impacted the profit. During the year, the Bank of Punjab provided subordinated funds of Rupees
500 million to provide financial support to the Modaraba.
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Owing to eroded equity; the Modaraba was unable to engage in business for five months,
significantly impacting its profitability. However, with the start of the new financial year, the
Modaraba's has resumed business operations, focusing on guality clients and better returns. It is
expected to achieve notable returns for its valued certificate holders in the future. With the
decline in discount rate; the financial performance of the Modaraba will be improved as compared
to losses incurred during the current and corresponding year. The management has already taken
various steps to improve earnings and better results and ultimately better returns to certificate
holders.

During FY 2023, the modaraba secured new business worth Rs.396 million with high-quality
clients, ensuring smooth and timely recovery. The total assets of the modaraba increased by
7.80% compared to the previous year. Additionally, liabilities were reduced by 11.36% during the
reporting year as compared to previous year,

Wholly owned Subsidiary During the year, the Subsidiary has been sold to ultimate parent Bank
i.e. The Bank of Punjab.

Profit distribution and transfer to reserves Owing to loss during the year, no dividend was
declared and accordingly, no amount was transferred to reserves by the Board.

Future Strategy Considering the current economic conditions marked by low buying power and
high inflation in the country, the management is proceeding cautiously with investments in
income-generating segments to enhance profitability.

Recovering from the classified portfolio remains a top priority, and the management is exerting its
best efforts and implementing concrete steps to achieve success in this area,

Financial Strength Rating We are pleased to share that the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (Pwt.)
Limited (PACRA) has reaffirmed the Modaraba's long-term rating of “A-" and short-term rating of
“A2" with a "5table” outlook. This rating assessment stems from PACRA's thorough annual and
interim reviews, which analyze a range of factors and indicators concerning the Modaraba's
financial strength, performance, and outlook. The reaffirmed ratings and stable outlook reflect
Modaraba's association with The Bank of Punjab [Rated AA+ by PACRA).

Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework The Modaraba has complied with all the
requirements of the Code of Corporate Gowvernance as required by the listing regulations.
Accordingly, the Directars are pleased to confirm the following:

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba, present its state
of affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b) Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and any departures there from have been
adequately disclosed and explained;

e} The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored:
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f)

gl

There are no significant doubts upon the Modaraba's ability to continue as a going
concern.
There were no principal risks or uncertainties facing the Modaraba.

h) There were no significant changes concerning the nature of business of the Maodaraba.

i)

J)

k)

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations) expect for those mentioned in the statement of compliance.
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Modaraba which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Modaraba to
which the financial statement relates and the date of the report.
The Board of directors and its management team are fully determined to move the
Modaraba from present situation of uncertainties and for this a strategic plan has been
developed, which is expected to bring positive improvements in the foreseeable future.
Key operating and financial data for last six years, Pattern of holding by the certificate
holders and additional related information is annexed.

) During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors and three meetings of Audit
Committee were held separately. Attendance by each Director and member of Audit
Committee is annexed.

n) Majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent, while all are non-

executive directors.

o) There are no outstanding demands of statutory payments on account of taxes, duties,

levies and charges as at 31 December 2023, except for those disclosed in financial
statements.

p} The value of investments of the staff provident fund, based on management accounts, was

Rs. 9,963,403 as at 30 June, 2023.

Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance The Company has diligently adhered to the
requirements outlined in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,

2019,
been

during the year ending on December 31, 2022. Any exceptions to these requirements have
transparently disclosed in the Statement of Compliance with the Best Practices of Corporate

Governance,

Composition of the Board The seven-member Board of Directors ensures statutory representation
across director categories, as mandated by the Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019. They make strategic decisions on vital management matters, executing
important business activities while adhering to established criteria and assessing risks. The Board
also oversees guidelines to ensure compliance.,

1.

The total number of directors was seven (07} comprising of six {(08) male and one (01)
female director.

The Board included one (01) executive, and six (08) non-executive directors out of whom
two (02) were independent directors.

The composition of Board of directors (the Board) is as follows:

Sr# Name of Director Type

1 Mr. Imran Basir Independent Director

2 Ms. Samina Afsar Independent/Female Director

3 Mr. Madeem Amir Chairman/MNon-Executive Director
4 Mr. ljaz Ur Rehman Qureshi. Non-Executive Director
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5 Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh ‘Non-Executive Director ]
b Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari Non-Executive Director |
7| Mr. Amir Malik*® CEO/Executive Director ]

Board Meetings & Attendance During the year five meetings of the Board of Directors were held,
attendance by each director is as follows:

MNo. of meetings

Sr# MName of director
attended

Mr. Nadeem Amir 2
Mr. Imran Bashir

Mr. ljaz Ur Rehman Qureshi
Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari
Mr. Aamir Malik*

_Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh

Ms. Samina Afsar

S = R, - ETE R R

= (wu|waunen

The Board of Directors has established Audit Committee, Human Resource Committee and Risk
Management Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.

Audit Committee Meetings & Attendance During the year three meetings of the Audit Committee
were held, attendance by each director is as follows:

No. of meetings

MName of director

attended
1 | Mr. Imran Bashir — Chairman 3
- Mr. ljaz Ur Rehman Qureshi - Member ‘ 3 ‘
3 | Ms. Samina Afsar — Member 1

Human Resource Committee Meetings & Attendance During the year one meetings of the Human
Resource Committee were held, attendance by each director is as fallows:

No. of ti
Sri Mame of director o. of meetings

attended
1 Mr. Imran Bashir | 1
2 Mr. ljaz Ur Rehman Qureshi 1
3 | Ms. Samina Afsar 1
4 | Mr. Umer Igbal Sheikh 1
5 | Mr. Aamir Malik * | 1

*The service contract of Mr. Amir Malik expired on April 28, 2024,

Related Party Transactions All transactions with related parties during the financial year ending
December 31, 2023, were meticulously presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for
comprehensive review and approval. The Audit Committee thoroughly evaluated these
transactions to ensure compliance with the approved transfer pricing methods and the Board-
endorsed policy for related parties.
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Role of Certificate Holders With a strong commitment to transparency and accountability, the
Board ensures that the Modaraba’s esteemed certificate holders are well-informed about
significant developments affecting the Modaraba's overall state of affairs. To achieve this,
comprehensive information is provided to the certificate holders through quarterly, half-yearly,
and annual reports.

The Board high wvalues the active participation of certificate holders during the annual review
meeting, as it serves as a crucial platform for fostering high level of accountability and ensuring
that their valuable insights are taken into consideration.

Statutory Auditors The retiring auditors M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co., Chartered Accountants
are eligible for re-appointment for the year ending December 31, 2024. Their reappointment has
been confirmed by the Board subject to approval by the Registrar Modaraba.

Statement of Ethics & Business Practice The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct that defines
essential values related to lawful and ethical business practices. Each employee has received a
copy of this code and is expected to maintain the highest standards of integrity and fairness when
dealing with customers, colleagues, and regulatory authorities. This Code of Conduct is a key part
of the Modaraba's compliance framework, fostering a culture of ethical behavior across the
arganization,

Social Ethics & Environmental Responsibilities The Board is highly conscious of social, ethical, and
environmental issues, recognizing their importance in the public interest. Committed to corporate
responsibility, the Board actively plans for continued involvement in these areas. By proactively
addressing social, ethical, and environmental concerns, the Board aims to positively impact society
and the environment while upholding the Modaraba's values and principles.

Chairman Review The enclosed Chairman’s review offers a detailed evaluation of the Modaraba's
performance for the year ending December 31, 2023, along with future outlook insights. The
Board of Directors fully supports the review's content, confirming it reflects the Board's
assessment of the Modaraba's performance and its vision for the future.

Relationship with Stake Holders The Modaraba is committed to fostering mutually beneficial
relationships with all stakeholders, including the Pakistan Stock Exchange, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), and other valued business partners. We are pleased to
report that, Alhamdulillah, our relationships with all stakeholders have remained positive and
harmonious throughout the period. This ongoing collaboration and support play a crucial role in
the Modaraba's success and growth.

Subsequent Events The service contract of Executive Director / Chief Executive of Punjab
Modaraba Services (Private) Limited, Mr. Aamir Malik expired on April 28, 2024 and Mr. Mudassar
Kaiser Pal has been appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval of the
Registrar Modaraba, till appointment of new Chief Executive Officer.

There have been no further significant changes or commitments that have impacted the financial

position of the Modaraba between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. The
Modaraba's financial position remains consistent during this period,
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Operating data for six years The operating data for six (08) years is annexed to this report.

Pattern of certificate holding The detailed pattern of certificate holding as required under the
Code of Corporate Governance is annexed to this report.

There has been no trading in the certificates of Modaraba by any of its Directors, CEQ, CFO,
Company Secretary or their spouses and minor children unless specified in the financial
statements.

Acknowledgement The Board remains thankful to Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, Registrar Modaraba, 5tate Bank of Pakistan, and MBFCs & Modaraba Association of
Pakistan for providing us their usual support and guidance.

The Board appreciates and pays gratitude to the certificate holders and customers for entrusting
their confidence on us and we assure them to maintain adequate internal controls, providing
personalized services and also an ideal environment of good corporate governance in all areas of
the activities.

Finally, the Board appreciates the dedication and hard work put in by the management and all
staff members of First Punjab Modaraba.

For and on behalf of the Board

VSRR -

Imran Bashir ljaz Ur Rehman Qureshi Umer Igbal Sheikh
Director Director Director

Lahore: June 24, 2024
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of company: FIRST PUNJABE MODARABA
Year ending: DECEMBER 31, 2023

The modaraba has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -
1. The total number of directors is Seven as per the following:

a. Male: Six (06)

b. Female:  One (01)

2. The compaosition of the Board is as follows:

' Ihdspandénf directors Mr. Imran Bashir
Ms. Samina Afsar
Mon-executive directors Mr. Madeam Amir

Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari
Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh

Executive directors Mr. Aamir Malik

Female directors Ms. Samina Afsar {also an independent director)

Mo changes have been made in the Board during the year. The fraction required for minimum
number of independent directors, being 0.33 has not been rounded up as one, in view of the
experience and skill possessed by existing independent directors, which suffice the requirement of
independent directors.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this modaraba,

d4. The modaraba has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the modaraba along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the modaraba. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the modaraba;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board,

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Out of seven (07) directors, following six (08) have obtained certifications under directors training
program:
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Mr. Nadeem Amir

Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari
Mr. Imran Bashir

Ms. Samina Afsar

Mr. Aamir Malik

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations. However, in view of the scale of operations of
Modaraba, the same person has held the office of CFO and Company Secretary for the year ended

December 31, 2023.

11. Chief financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.

a) Audit Committee

Chairman Mr. Imran Bashir
Member Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Ms. Samina Afsar

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Chairperson Ms. Samina Afsar

Member Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh
Member Mr. Imran Bashir

Member Mr. Aamir Malik

c) Risk Management Committee

Chairman Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh
Member Mr. Aamir Malik

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees was as per following.-

~Audit Committee Three |
HR and Remuneration Committee One |
Risk Management Committee il |
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Audit Cormmittee meetings could not be held for the quarters and period ended March 31, 2023 and
June 30, 2023 resulting in non-compliance to the provisions of the Code reguiring that meeting of
the Audit Committee shall be held at least once in every guarter owing to implementation of new
accounting software during the current financial year and appointment of new auditors, requiring
more fime for finalization of audited financial statements of the modaraba for the year ended
December 31, 2022 consequent delay in finalization of interim financial information for the quarter
ended March 31, 2023 which were reviewed by Audit Committee in its meeting held in July 2023;

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the paolicies and procedures of the modaraba;

16. The statutory auditors of the modaraba have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with Intemational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm invalved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the modaraba;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with except of those that are mentioned at point no.14 and 19,

19. Internal audit function was not present in 1st quarter to facilitate the audit committee owing to

vacant position in the office of Head of Audit that could not be filled in absence of suitable
candidate.

C it

Date: June 24, 2024 NADEEM AMIR
CHAIRMAN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE-HOLDERS OF THE FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA

Review Report on the 5tatement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited, the Management Company of First Punjab Modaraba
{the “Modaraba®) for the year ended December 31, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Management Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Management Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal controls systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not reguired to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Management Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
reguirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management Company's compliance, in
all material respects, with the reguirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the

Management Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

LAHORE: June 24, 2024 KRESTON HYDER'BHIMJI & CO.
UDIN # AR202310766wrsStzHE) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annual Report 2023 | 24|



ak SERL .
l;_a.f‘ T

NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

The Certificate Holders are hereby notified that the Certificate Transfer Books shall remain
closed from 12-07-2024 to 22-07-2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of attending
Annual Review Meeting. All transfers received in order upto close of business hours on July 11,
2024 with our Registrar’s office, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., H.M House, 7-Bank
Square, The Mall, Lahore, will be considered in time.

The Annual Review Meeting of the Certificate holders will be held at 10:00 am on Monday, July
22, 2024 through video link (Zoom Meeting) to review the performance of the Modaraba for
the year ended December 31, 2023 in terms of Regulation MNo.33, Chapter IV of Modaraba
Regulations, 2021,

The Certificate Holders are requested to send intimation through valid email 1D to the address
given below to participate in the meeting through video link, at least seven (07) days prior to

the date of meeting:

armdec2023@punjabmodaraba.com.pk

The Modaraba will communicate participation link through return email. Further, the
certificate holders may send their comments / suggestions on the above email address or on
Whatsapp / Mobile no. 0333 4348414 , at least seven (07) days prior to the date of meeting.

The annual audited financial statements of the Modaraba for year ended December 31, 2023
are also available on Modaraba's website: www.punjabmodaraba.com.pk.

By the Order of
Board of Directors

8 % —

{Mudassar Kaiser Pal)
COMPANY SECRETARY
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2023

Mumber of Shareholdings Total Number of Shares Percentage of Total
ShareHolders From To Held Capital
935 1- 100 40,758 0.2
1365 101 - 500 379,512 112
1029 501 - 1000 543,284 248
585 1001 - 5000 1,342,236 3.9
121 5001 - 10000 913,672 2.69
29 10001 - 15000 363,974 1.07
34 15001 - 20000 617.913 1.82
19 20001 - 25000 420,307 1.26
12 25001 - 30000 335,853 099
B 30001 - 35000 196,918 0.58
1 as0n01 - 40000 412,568 1.
1 40001 - 45000 45,000 013
5 45001 - S0000 248,000 o7a
& 0001 - 55000 321,000 084
1 55001 - G000 58, 000 o7
3 65001 - TOO0D 202,050 0.59
4 70001 - TS000 298,000 (.88
2 BODOT - BE0DD 168,000 0.49
1 85001 - Q0000 &7 000 026
4 95001 - 100000 400, 000 1.18
3 100001 - 105000 305,500 0.90
4 105001 - 110000 430,785 127
1 110001 - 115000 112 500 033
1 115001 - 120000 117,923 0.35
2 130001 - 135000 268,500 0ye
1 150001 - 155000 151,000 044
1 155001 - 1B0000 158, 000 046
2 175001 - 180000 356,000 1.05
2 195001 - 200000 307 644 117
1 200001 - 205000 202,000 0.59
1 2065001 - 210000 210,000 0.62
1 220001 - 225000 222 504 065
1 285001 - 290000 287,000 084
1 350001 - 355000 351,000 1.03
1 365001 - 70000 367,500 1.08
1 495001 - 500000 500,000 147
1 520001 - 525000 525,000 1.54
1 540001 - 545000 642,223 1.89
1 1020001 - 1025000 1,025,000 im
1 1265001 - 1270000 1,265,777 T2
1 5005001 - 51000040 5,089,500 14.99
1 5230001 - 5235000 5232104 15.38
1 2085001 - 2000000 5,088,500 23.78
4,207 34,020,000 100.00
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DETAILED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON DECEMEBER 31, 2023

Mo. of
Sr. # Name Certficate Shares Held Percentage
Holders
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
1 PUNJAE MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 8,088,500 237757
2  THE BANK OF PUNJAB 4,788 C.0141
3 PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT)LTD. 5,232,154 15.3798
4 TRUSTEE-THE BANK OF PUNJAB EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 5,089 500 14,0857
4 18,424 982 54,1593
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
1 INVESTMENT CORP. OF PAKISTAN 400 0.0012
1 400 0.0012
Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations
1 NATIOMAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE- CORPORATION (INVESTER) 3,300 00097
2 HNATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN TRUSTEE WING HEAD OFFICE 565 0.0028
3 MUHAMMAD AMER RIAZ SECURITIES (PVT.} LIMITED 0 0.0001
4 ATLAS BOT INVESTMENT BANK LTD. 420 0.0013
5 MN.BP. TRUSTEE DEPARTMEMNT H.C. 260 0.0008
& SAUDI-PAK INDUSTRIAL & AGRI- CULTURAL INY. CO. (PVT)}LTD 24 535 0.0721
7 AL-FAISAL INVESTMEMNT BANK LTD. 100 0.0003
& MNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEASING- CORPORATION 5,200 0.0153
9 KARACH| INVESTMENT COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED 189 0.0006
10 IDBEL {ICP UMIT) 2408 0.0071
11 Diamond Industries Lid 151,000 0.4439
12 MNATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN B5E 0.0019
13 ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 19,760 0.0581
14 FRAMNELIN INVESTMENT BANK LTD 1,100 0.0032
14 209,922 0.6171
Insurance Companies
1 STATE LIFE INSURAMCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1,265 777 3.7207
1 1265777 3.7207
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
1 GEMNERAL LEASING MODARABA 56 0.0002
2 SECURITY STOCK FUND LTD. 3,100 0.0091
3 TRUST MODARABA 1,752 0.0051
4  FIRST IBL MODARABA 100,000 0.2039
5 PRUDENTIAL STOCKS FUND LIMITED 100 0.0003
6 FIRST FIDELITY LEASING MODARBA 300 0.0008
[ 105,308 0.3005
General Public {Local)
4,154 13,634,005 40.0764
Joint Stock Companies
1 DOSSLANIS SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 250 0.0010
2 MSMANIAR FINANCIALS (PVT) LTD. 132 0.0004
3 DR. ARSLAN RAZAQUE SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 200 0.0008
4 ALl USMAM STOCK BROKERAGE (PVT) LIMITED 275 0.0008
5  MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 240 0.0007
& CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 3310 0.0097
T MILLENNIUM SECURITIES & INVEST.(PVT) LTD 20 0.0001
8 5.H.BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 382 0.0011
9 MAPLE LEAF CARPITAL LIMITED 1 0.0000
10 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (FRIVATE)LTD 570 0.0017
11 EJAZ SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 178,500 0.5247
12 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 2,000 0.0059
13 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 260 0.0008
14 SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 20,000 0.0588
14 EDEEHH 0.6062

Annual Report 2023 | 27 |



Others

1 HANERI HOLDINGS (PVT)LTD 500 0.0015
2  ALLY BROTHERS & COMPANY M/S. (PAKISTAN) LTD. 17,500 00514
3 JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & CO. LTD. 3,202 00094
4 SAPFHIRE FIERES LTD 500 .05
5 MORGAMN STANLEY TRUST 18,335 0.0565
B MORGAN STAMLEY INTERNATIOMAL 1,200 0.0035
7 B.RRINVESTMENTS (PVT.)LTD 8,750 0.0257
& IMPEX CORFPORATION (PVT.)LTD. 3,248 0.0095
9  DADABHOY LEASING COMPANY LTD. 6,804 0.0200
10 BILAL ASSOCIATES 18 0.0001
11 TRUST LEASING CORFPOQRATION LTD, 1,775 0.0052
12 TRUSTEE MATIONAL BAMK OF PAKISTAN EMP BEMEVOLENT FUND 3,747 0.0110
13 TRUSTEE MATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 106,786 0.3139
13 173,366 0.5096

Grand Total: 4207 34,020,000 100.0000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF
FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of First Punjab Modaraba
(the “Modaraba”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX| of 1980), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's
affairs as at December 31, 2023 and of the loss and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Modaraba and
Modaraba Company (Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited) in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants 'Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

1. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
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financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

2. Following are the Key audit matters, namely:

Sr. Key Audit Matters How the matter was
No. addressed in our audit
1L Revenue recognition:

As per ISA 240, there is a
presumed risk of material
misstatement due to inappropriate
revenue recognition. This may
either result from an overstatement
of revenues through premature
revenue recognition or recording
fictitious revenues or an
understatement of revenues
through improperly shifting
revenues to a later period.

These revenues may also be
manipulated through the use of
inappropriate profit rates for the
overstatement / understatement of
revenue to achieve desired financial
results.

In view of significant value of
transactions and presumed risk of
material misstatement involved, we
have considered this as a key audit
matter.

The disclosures related to
recognition of revenue by the
Modaraba are provided in note 4.22
to the annexed financial statements.

In this regard, our audit
procedures included:

Understanding the policies
and procedures applied to
revenue recognition, as
well as compliance
therewith, including an
analysis of the
effectiveness of controls
related to revenue
recognition processes
employed by the
Modaraba.

Performing cut-off
procedures for a sample of
revenue transactions at
year end in order to
conclude on whether they
were recognized in the
relevant accounting period.

Performing analytical
procedures on entries in
the daily ledger related to
revenue made by the
Modaraba. These
procedures were carried
out paying special attention
to accounting entries
recorded close to the
yearend or subsequently,
as well as those deemed
unusual due, among other
reasons, to their nature,
amount, date of
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occurrence.

* Reviewing disclosures
included in the notes to the
annexed financial
statements.

Taxation:

As described in Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies in
note — 4.12, significant judgment is
required in determining the
provision for income tax, both
current and deferred, as well
assessment of provision for
uncertain tax positions including
estimates of penalties / default
surcharge, where appropriate.

The statement of financial position
includes advance income tax net of
provision of Rs. 10.054 million
together with deferred tax asset of
Rs. 109.658 million. The tax credit
recognized in the statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive
is Rs. 49.513 million. Detail of
taxation including levies is disclosed
in notes 11, 37 and 38 to the
annexed financial statements
respectively.

Due to their significance to the
financial statements as a whole,
together with the judgment and
estimation required to determine
their values, the evaluation of
current and deferred tax balances is
considered to be a key audit matter.

We evaluated the design and
implementation of controls in
respect of provisions for
current tax and the recognition
of deferred tax.

We discussed with
management the adequate
implementation of Modaraba's
policies and controls regarding
current and deferred tax as
well as the reporting of
uncertain tax positions.

We examined the procedures
in place for the levies and
income tax calculations for
completeness and valuation
and audited the related
computations and estimates in
the light of our knowledge of
the circumstances. Our
verification of taxation was
also made with the assistance
of our firm's tax department.

We considered management
assessment of the validity and
adequacy of provision for
uncertain tax provisions,
evaluating the basis of
assessment and reviewing
relevant correspondence and
legal advice where available
including any information
regarding similar cases with
the relevant tax authorities.

In respect of deferred tax

Annual Report 2023 | 3] |



Provision against financing / advances and other receivables

The Modaraba makes specific
provisions against financing /
advances as disclosed in notes 8,
9, 12, 13 and 14 to the financial
statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Modaraba
Regulations, 2021 issued by the
SECP from time to time. The
Modaraba has also made provision
against other receivables as
disclosed in note 17 to the financial
statements as per accounting
standards.

The net provision made or reversed
during the year against advances is
charged or credited to the
statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income and
accumulated provision is netted-off
against advances and other
receivables.

The Modaraba has recognized a
reversal of provision against
advances amounting to Rs. 11.119
million and made further provision
against other receivables
amounting to Rs. 57.361 million in
the statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income in the
current year. As at December 31,
2023, the Modaraba holds a
provision of Rs. 316.139 million and

assets and liabilities, we
assessed the appropriateness
of management assumptions
and estimates.

We reviewed disclosures
included in the notes 11, 37
and 38 to the annexed
financial statements.

Our audit procedures to verifj}
provision against advances
and other receivables
included, amongst others, the
following:

We obtained an understanding
of the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of the
relevant controls established
by the Modaraba to identify
loss events and for
determining the extent of
provisioning required against
non-performing advances and
other receivables.

The testing of controls
included testing of:

+ controls over correct
classification of non-
performing advances on
time-based criteria;

e controls over monitoring of
advances / receivables with
higher risk of default and
correct classification of
non-performing advances /
receivables on subjective
criteria;
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Rs. 67.316 million against advances
and other receivables respectively.

The determination of provision
against advances and receivables
based on the above criteria remains
a significant area of judgment and
estimation. Because of the
significance of the impact of these
judgments / estimations and the
materiality of advances and other
receivables relative to the overall
financial statements of the
Modaraba, we considered provision
against advances and other
receivables as a key audit matter.

We selected a sample of
advances and receivables
accounts and performed the
following substantive
procedures:

We checked the accuracy of

controls over accurate
computation and recording
of provision; and

controls over the
governance and approval
process related to
provision, including
continuous reassessment
by the management.

checked repayments of
advances / mark-up
installments and tested
classification of non-
performing advances
based on the number of
days overdue;

evaluated the
management’s assessment
for classification of
borrower’'s advances
facilities as performing or
nonperforming based on a
review of repayment
pattern, inspection of credit
documentation and
discussions with the
management; and

examined supporting
documentation such as
agreements, repayment
schedules, repayment
history, collateral details,
etc.
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specific provisions made
against non-performing
advances and other
receivables as per the
requirements of the accounting
policy by re-computing the
provision amount in
accordance with the criteria
prescribed under the
accounting policy.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba
Company for the financial statements

1. Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control}) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI| of 1980) and for such internal control as
management of the Modaraba Company determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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2.

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba
Company is responsible for assessing the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management of the
Modaraba Company either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing
the Modaraba's financial reporting process.

F. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

1.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modaraba's
internal control;

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management of the Modaraba Company;

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba

Company's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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3.

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e) Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors of the Modaraba Company with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Modaraba
Company, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

Proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in
respect of the Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXI of 1980);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
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statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation
and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI| of 1980) and are in agreement with
the books of account;

c) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and
guarantees extended during the year by the Modaraba were in
accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,
1980 (XVIII of 1980).

H. Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 were audited by

another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements on August 02, 2023 respectively.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr.

Shabir Ahmad, FCA. _ /7 ’

LAHORE: June 24, 2024 KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI& CO.
UDIN # AR202310766wrs5tzHE) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Shari’ah Advisor’s Report
First Punjab Modaraba (December 31, 2023)

| have conducted the Shari'ah review of First Punjab Modaraba (FPM) managed by Punjab Modaraba
Services (PVT) Limited for the Year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with the requirements of

the Shari"ah Compliance and Shari'ah Audit Mechanism for Modarabas and report that:

The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the Shari'ah compliance, in
letter and spirit and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line
with the Shari'ah principles.

The agreement(s) entered by the Modaraba are Shari'ah compliant and the financing
agreement(s) have been executed on the formats as approved by the Religious Board of SECP
and all the related conditions have been met.

During the year, the Shari'ah Advisor visited the premises regularly to provide Shari’ah
assistance in day-to-day operations.

Internal Shariah training for HOD's has been conducted by Shariah Advisor during the year,

The earnings and income realized from the prohibited sources or by means prohibited by
Shariah have been credited to charity account and it is advised to FPM to disburse remaining
charity ASAP,

Observation(s)

1) It has been observed that internal shariah audit of FPM needs trained & skilled resource
having proper certification of shariah audit mechanism. Due to frequent turnover in Internal
Shari‘ah Audit position, Internal Shariah Audit Mechanism of Modaraba facing problems in
compliance of checking and verification of routine operations and proper required reporting
in accordance with Shariah’ah principles.

2) Certain policies and S0P's need periodic review with regards to Shari'ah principles

3) Debut natured transactions required prior written approval from Shari’ah Advisor including
all kind of Modaraba’s inflows, outflows, or investments, to meet the Shariah compliance
reguirements.

Recommendation(s):

1} According to the Annual Shariah Advisor Report dated December 31, 2022, FPM should
appoint a well-trained internal Shariah auditor on a permanent basis. Shariah Compliance
and Internal Shariah Audit are two distinct yet interconnected disciplines. The efficacy of the
Shariah Advisor's role is dependent on this coordination. FPM must address the issue before
the next Annual Shariah Advisor Report.

2) It is the primary & imperative responsibility of Islamic Financial Institution to ensure all

Shari’ah related Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) & policies through vetting by Shariah
Advisor. Therefore, it is highly recommended to the FPM management to take necessary
steps in this regard before next annual Shariah Advisor report.

3) It is essential for FPM to take prior-approval as described in observation no.3, by providing
relevant information to Shari‘ah Advisor to analyze and confirm the Shari'ah Compliance
status of transactions. This has already advised by the Shariah Advisor in the annual reports
December 31, 2022,
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4) FPM efforts to convert 98.50% of the insurance portfolio into Takaful are very appreciated.
The remaining small portion of corporate clients still consists in Insurance. it is advised that
FPM actively encourages these clients to transition their insurance arrangements to Takaful,
particularly when they are obtaining financing from Islamic financial institution.

5] Investment of staff provident fund is explicitly recommended in Shari’ah Compliant mode.
FPM should ensure this action prior to the issuance of the next annual Shariah report.

Conclusion:

In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and information provided by FPM with relevant
explanations, The Modaraba's overall business activities, comply with the Shariah Compliance
Mechanism. Nevertheless, FPM management needs to put more efforts and take the necessary actions

as recommended above,

May Allah make us successful in this world and hereafter and forgive our mistakes.

LS

Mufti Muhammad Umar
Shariah Advisor,FPM
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FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023

ASSETS

Mon current assets
Tangible fixed assets
- harah assels
- Azsefs in own use
Intangible assels
lwestment in subsidiary
Lomg term mugharikah imvestmant - secured
Long term morabaha investment - secured
Lo term deposits
Dratarrad tax assel

Currant assets

Short term morabaha mvestment - secursd

Current maturity of long term investment

farah rental recenvabla

Short term invesiment

Devglopment properties

Advances, daposits, prepayments and other recenvables
Incarme lax refund due from government - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorized cerificate capital

50,000,000 {2023 50,000,000) modaraba
certificales o Rs, 10 each

Izsued, subscribed and paid-up cerfificate capital
34,020,000 (2022 34,020,000 certificates of Rs. 10 each

Capital resarves
Ravanue reserves
Subordinated funds
Total equity

Man current Habilities

Loy larim sacurily depasis

Deferred morabaha income

Staff refirement benefits - gratuity

Long term musharikah finance - secured
Redeemabla capital - particpatory and unsacurad

Currant liabilities

Current maturity of non current liabiities

Dreferred moraaha income

Redesmable capital - participatory and unsecured
Profil payable

Trade and ofher payables

Provision for levies

Unclaimed dividend

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 51 farm an integral part of these financlal statements,

Note

12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

n
k]
i

2
x|
4

5

25
Fo)
28
28
k)

30

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

%
" O
" VSRR

[Modaraba Company}

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIRECTOR

Reslatad

December 31, 2023 December 31, January 4, 222

Rupees Rupess Rupees
148,068,219 237,006,007 331,566,072
4 066 485 2872 BT 3415009
1,055,607 1,722,250 1,100,000
- 76,500,000 76,500,000
458,544, 566 541,155,674 286 701,023
13,502,006 26,861,506 4,280,524
203,444 203 444 203444
109,657,977 61,046,067 B, 734 565
735,098,304 94T 557 630 773,500 637
173,447,518 197,405, 854 204, 569,839
368,755,675 328,375,145 395,344 987
111,362 665 144,571,854 200,621 167
350,000,000 200,000,000 200,040,000
48,596,584 53,369,658 39,483,636
156,786,162 128,626,104 125,107 525
10,053,695 4,641 407 4,201,717
233 544 957 26,675, 787 135,278 267
1,454 640256  1.083,758.144 1,308,607 138
2,189,747,560 2031315984 2082107 775
500,000,000 500,000,000 SO0, 000,040
340,200,000 340,200,000 340,200,000
218,176,678 218,176,678 218176678
(680,257,522)  (570,8908.001) (4B 593,574)
500,000,000 - -
378,119,156 (12,526,323 74,683,104
2,140,000 B,403 B0 42274729
5,881,661 8,030 556 -
8,271,499 9,658.435 B8535
z - 131,100,952
1.485,000,000 = -
1.502,293,160 27,084,232 161,430,514
98,326,302 107 481,621 84,285,155
. 1,224 665 -
- 1,825,000,000 1,603,000.000
103,300,796 26,096,745 22 B4 64
86,151,716 37,783,747 o7, 180,879
4,365,046 - 1,519,504
17,190,485 17,191,275 AT, 203,255
309,335,245 2046, 748 055 1,825,084 157
2,989,747,560 2031315524 2,082,107 775

% q%
At .
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

INCOME

Income from ijarah rentals 31
Income from morabaha financing

Income from dirminishing musharikah financing

(Gain from sale of development properiies 32
Gain [ (loss) on disposal of assets a3
Other income 34

EXPENSES
Administrative and general expenses
Finance cost

s &

OPERATING LOSS BEFORE REVERSAL OF PROVISION { PROVISION

Reversal of provision { (Provision) against ijarah rentals - net

Reversal of provision ! (Provision) against morabaha investments - net
Reversal of provision / (Provision) against musharikah investments - net
{ Provision} /| Reversal of provision against other receivables

OPERATING LOSS AFTER REVERSAL OF PROVISION [ PROVISION
MODARAEA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT FEE
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX AND LEVIES

LEVIES a
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

INCOME TAX 38
LOSS AFTER INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of defined benafit obligation
Related income tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR
LOSS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED i

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

Restated
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
40,518,318 42 187 727
8,008,367 11,841,154
195,830,229 96,647 477
2,587,377 £
5,224,014 (6,072,103)
79,150,545 66,903,965
331,319,350 211,508,224
79,992,200 £9,596,129
358,390,896 220,686,764
438,383,096 200,282 893
(107,063,746) (78,774,660
408,563 (4,597,502
9,044 500 2,750,000
1,666,373 (1,854,879
(57,360,693) 1,172 649
(46,241,257) (2,560,732
(153,305,002 (81,344 401)
{153,305,002) (81,344 401)
(7,769,876) (B47,908)
(161,074,878) (81,992,309)
49,513,360 (5,551,798)
(111,561,518) (87,544,107)
3,108,447 471,380
(901,450) {136,700
2,206,997 334 680
{109,354,521) (87,200 42T)
(3.28) {2.57)

{Modaraba Company)
LY
> ,@
S = R I ) r
“:gf > e Q}}_‘:. x\}_y\\v,.{::, :
" CHIEF EINANCIAL DFFICER " DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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FIRST PUNJABE MODARABA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

lssued Capital Reserve Revenue Reserve
subscribed and Statutory Subordinated Accumulated
paid up
Certificate capital reserve funids loss Total equity
Rupees
Balance as al January 11, 2022 - previcusly rapartad 340,200,000 218176678 1471,759,082) B 17 596
Cormaction of eror {nate - 4,23) - - (11,924 492) (11,834 403)
Balance as at January (1, 2022 - raslated 340,200,000 218176 675 - (483.553,574) 14,683,104
Loss afier income tax for the year - [87.544,107) (B7 544 107)
CHner comprengnsieg income for g vear - - 334 Bl 334,680
Total comprebansive koss for the year - - - (B7 2IBAET) {87 208 427)
Balance gs at December 31, 2022 340,200,000 218,176 678 - 1570,903,001) 112 526,323
Balance as at Decamber 31, 2022 - previously rapariad 340,200,000 218178678 (566, 326,230) 50448
Coprection of eror {nole - 4,23) - - (12.576,771) (12 576,771
Batance as al December 31, 2022 - restaled 340,500,000 HBATEETE 1570,903,001) 112,526,323)
Lioss afier income 1ax far tha year - - 111,561 518) (111,561,518}
Cither comprenensies income for e year - 2206 M7 2,206 987
Total comprehensive kss for the year - - (108,554, 551} (108,354 521)
Subondnabed funds received from parent company - - 500,000,000 500,000,000
Balance as at December 31, 2023 340,200,000 218,176,678 500,000,000 680,257 522) 378,119,156
The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
{Modaraba Company|
Yo
o~ %
%// Mot I -
\:bf y‘cjﬂvlgéﬁj I
CHIEF FINAMCIAL DFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTCR
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FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Nofe

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 48

Disbursemants under ljarah arangaments 5.1
Proceads from transfer of ijarah assels

Muorabaha financing - net 9
Musharikah financing - nel 8
Development properties - net

Security deposits against ijarah assets - net X2
Profit paid on redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured

Profit paid on musharikah finances

Bank charges paid

Gratuity paid 24.2
Income tax paid

Met cash generated from [ {used in) operafing activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of assets in own use 5.2
Proceads from disposal of assels in own use

Proceeds from disposal of subsdiary company

Purchase of intangible assets

Praofit received on bank deposits

Changes in short term investments made during the year - net

Dividend incomsa

Net cash (used in) | generated from investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lang term Musharikah finance - secured

Subordinated funds received from parant comparny 2
Changes in redeemable capital - paricipatory and unsecurad (naf) 27
Profit distributied among the certificate holders

Met cash generated from financing activities

NET INCREASE | (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 18

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

Restated
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
268,473,192 242 007,703
{28,003,913) (61,065,014}
35,111,408 32,03,774
20,310,770 (36,218,801)
66,983,352 (158,135,799}
3,673,114 {13,866,062)
(17,737,893) (11,203,400}
(262,873,910) (205,605,789
- 19,668 265)
(312,935) (189,%05)
(68,608) (115,104
(8,816,218) (6,012,083)
(211,734,793 (471,177 ,482)
56,738,399 (209,188,779}
(2,632,500) (8TE, 000
1,000,000 ar, 100
85,487,000 -
- (900,000
56,277,061 27,038,747
(150,000,000} ’
- 4,319,384
(9,868,439) 29,680,231
- (131,100,952}
500,000,000 -
(340,000,000 222 000,000
(791) (11,960}
159,999,208 90,867,068
206,369,169 (108,602 480)
26,675,787 135,278,267
233,544,957 26,675 78T

[Modaraba Company)
XL
II:\E}' -~ 4 H'f =
N -'.-"'"-f i 0 & e % i
P VRS WA
CHIEF EIMANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

4

DIRECTOR
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FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

First Punjab Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Contral) Ordinance,
1980 and rules framed there under and is managed by Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (the "Modaraba Company®) which is
& wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Punjab. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at Office Mo, 100, 3rd floor, National
Tower, Z6-Egerion Road, Lahore, The Modaraba commenced its operations on December 23, 1992, The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange.

Modaraba established its wholly-owned subsidiary on Novernber 29, 2016 as a Private Limited Company under the name of Punjab
Capital Securilies (Private) Limited. The registered office of Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited was situated at 3rd Floor, LSE
Flaza, 13-Khayabana Amane Igbal, Lahore. This Subsidary was mainly engaged in the business of brokerage services, portfolio
managemen! and cansullancy senvices. During the year, 100% stake in wholly owned subsidiary was sold fo ulimate parent i.e. The
Bank of Punjab against total consideration of Rs. 85487 million.

The Modaraba is & perpetual and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged in the business of liarah, Musharikah and
Murabaha financing, equity investment and other related businesses in accordance with the injunclions of Islam, Modaraba has obtained
approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan to undertake Building, Consiruciion and Real Estate activity by insertion
of 8 new clause for this purpose in prospectus of the Modaraba on January 13, 2021,

The Pakstan Credil Raling Agency (PACRA) hes assigned lang term rating of A- (December 31, 2022; A-) and short term rating of A-2
({Decembar 31, 2022: A-Z} to the Modaraba on September 20, 2023 (December 31, 20:22: September 20, 2022).

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statemants heve been prepared in accordance with (he approved accounting and reporting slandards @& applicable in
Fakistan. The approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprizes of:

o International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (|ASE)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

a Islamic Financial Accounting Standards {IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan;

a Reguiraments of the Modaraba Companles and Modaraba (Floatation and & Contral) Ordinance, 1980, the Madaraba

Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and

a Pravisions of and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba {Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1960 and the Companizs Act, 2017,

Wherever the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba {Floatafion and & Confrel) Qrdinance, 1980, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021and |slamic Financial Accounting Standards (|FAS) and provisions
of and directives issued by the Securifies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF) under the Modaraba Companies amd
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS Standards, the requirements of the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1380, Medaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981,
Modaraba Regulations, 2021, IFAS and provisions of and directives issued by the Secunfies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECF) under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Fleatation and Contral) Ordinance, 1880 and the Companies Act, 217 have

been followed.

The SECP hag issued directive (vide SRO 431 (1) F 2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 {|FAS 2) shall
be followed in preparation of the financial statements by Companies and Modarabas while accounting for Lease Financing fransactions
as definad by the said standard. The Modaraba has adopled the said standard.

Basis of measurement

Thesa financial statemants hava bean prepared under the historical cost convention, except for defined benefit obligation i.e. gratuity at
the present value of the obligation determined through actuanal valuation and discussed further in the respective policy note.
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Permissible Islamic financial products including Murabaha (as a liability) and Musharikah have been used by the Modaraba, in line with
similar industny practices. The accounting and presentation of the same are In Ine with the substance of the transaction and are limited o
fhe extent of actual amount of facility utiized and mutually agreed mark-up ! profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and
Musharikah profits [ reserves are not reflected in these financial statements except for Murabaha facility (a5 an assei) which has been
atcounted for in line with lslamic Financial Accounting Standard -1

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (Rs.) which is the Modaraba's functional ang presentation currency. Al
financial information presented in Fakistan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupes unless otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards a& applicable in Pakistan requires the
e of certain oribcal accounting estimates. In addibon, it requires management fo exercise judgment in the process of applying the
Modaraba's accounting poficies. The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily

g

Estimates of residual values, uselsl lves and depreciation methods of jarah assels (nola 4.3)
Estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of assets in own use (note 4.1)
Intangible assets {note 4.2}

Employees’ benefits - gratutty (note 4.11)

Development properbes - NRY (nole 4.6)

Cantingencias (nole 4.19)

Provisions (note 4.16).

Impairment of financial assets (note 4.15)

Impairment of non-financial assets (mote 4.15)

Provision against non-performing larah rentals receivables, Morabaha financing and Musharikah financing amd FSVs of
collaterals (note 4.4)

Provision for taxation (note 4.12).

o Classification

o o 0 o o o e c o

o

The revisions fo accounting estimates (if any) ere recognized in the pencd in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the perod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current

Thera are certain amendments to the published approved accounting sfandards that are affective in the currant year, However, these do
ot have any significant impact on the Modaraba's operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

During the period, the SECP vide s 5.R.0. 203{1)/2024 dated Fabruary 15, 2024 has made amendmants in the Modaraba Companies
and Modaraba Rules, 19871 with the approval of Federal Govemment. Through this notification words “balance sheet” and “profit and loss
account " have been substiuted with words “Stalement of Financial Position® and “Staterment of Profit and Loss and Olher
Comprehensive Income” respectively with immediate effect In addition to this disclosure related change in name of components of
financial staternents, there are no majpor amendments in the above referred notification (hat may require any adjustment to the carrying
values of assels and liabilities or disclosure in the financial statements of the Modaraba,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

Thene are certain other new antl amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Modaraba's acoounting
periods beginning on or afler January 01, 2024 bul are considersd nob fo be relevant ar will not have any significant effect an the
Modaraba's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial sfatements.

The SECF has defered the effective date of applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard 9 - Financial Instrements for
Modarabas for reporfing perod ending on or &fler June 30, 2024 via R0 1827 (1) / 2022 dated September 29, 2022, The provision
against invesiment under Musharikah, Morabaha and ljarah has been defermined in accordance with requirements of the Modaraba
Regulations, 2021 issuad by the Sacurifies and Exchangs Commissian of Pakistan [SECF).

However, Modaraba is currendly in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in classification and measurement of
financial instruments and the impact of expectad Ioss model on adoption of the standard.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The accounting poficies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year except far
the changes, if any, explained below:

Aszets in own use

Measurement

These are staled at cost less accumulated deprecialion and accumulated impairment losses, If any. Cost includes all expendiures that
ara directly attributable o fhe acquisition of fhe items. Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carmrying amounts or recognized s
separate assels, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Modaraba and the cosl of the items can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and mainlenance expenses are charged lo the stalement
af profit and loss and other comprehensive incomea as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciaion on all aperating fixed assets Is charged to statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income by applying the
straight ina mathod so as to write off the depraciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 5.1,
The residual values and useful ives are reviewsd by the management at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation

Is significant. Depreclation on addifions is charged from the date on which the assets are available for use and on disposals up o the
date on which the assets are disposed off.

Derecognition

An item of assels in use is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefils are expectad from its use. Any gain of loss
arising on derecognition af the asset is included in the statement of profit and loss and afher comprehensive income in fhe yvear the assel
I5 de-recognized.

Judgment and estimates

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets in own use may be impaired. If such indication
enisls, the carrving amounls of such assels ara reviewed fo assess whether they are recorded in excess of thelr recoverable amount,
Ynere carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down fo their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment Ioss is recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an assel's fair value less costs fo sell and value in wse, Where an impairment loss [s recognized, the deprecialion charge is
adjusted in the future periods o allocate the assel's revised camying amount over its estimated useful [ife.

Intangible assets
Measurement

Intaraible assats having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, I any.
Subsequent costs are inciuded in the assels' camying amounts or recognized as separate assels, as appropeiate, only whers it is
prabahle that the future economic benefils associated with the assets wil flow m the Modaraba and the cost of the items can be
measured refizbly. The useful ives and amorlization method are reviewed and adjusied, 88 appropriate, at esch reporing date,
Amortization is charged when the asset is availabla for use as intended by managemant.

Resaarch and development expenditure, IF any, 18 charged fo 'administrative and general expenses’ In the statement of profit and loss
and other comprehansive income, as and when incurred.

Intamgibie assets having an indefintz useful life are stated at cost kess accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gain or loss on disposal
of intangible assets, if any, i recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
Judgment and estimates

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication
exrsls, the canfying amounts of such assels are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of thelr recaverable amounts,
¥iers the camying vale exceeds the recoverable amount, intangible assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the
difference is recognized in the statement of profif and loss and other comprehensive income.
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ljarah assets

Azsels leased out under ljarah arangements are recorded es (jarah assets and ere stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated imparment losses. Cost includes all expenditures that sre directly atinbutable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent
cosls are included in the assel's camying amount of recognized a5 & separate assel, a8 approgriate, only when it i5 probable that fulurs
economic benefits associated with the tem will fiow to the Modaraba and the cost of the Hem can be measured refiably. All ofher repairs
and mainienance are charged o the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income as and when incurred. The residual
values, uselul lves and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date,

Depraciation is charged o the statemant of profit and less and ofher comprehensive income applying the straight line method whereby
the cost of an asset less residual value is depreciated over the estimated useful ife of the asset. Depreciation is charged on additions
from the date, the asset is available for use and on disposals up fo the date, the assatis disposed off

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the camying amount. These are recognized in the statement
of prafit and loss and alber camprehensive income. in the year in which these arise.

The carmying amount of the Modaraba's ljarah assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whather thare is any indication of
impairment in any azset or group of assets. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the ljarah assets is estimated and
impairment losses are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss and other comprehansive income,

Mustajir (ssors) presents the assets subject to larah in (helr statement of inancial position according to the nature of the assel. the
Mustajir is required to distinguish these [jarah assets from the assels in own use,

Costs, including depreciation an the assels given an ljarah, incurred in eaming the ljarah incomea are recognized as expenses,

Marabaha and Musharikah investment / financing

Marabaha investment

Modaraba oblaing an undertaking (promiss to purchass) from the client and purchases the requested assels | goods fram third parties
and takes possession of such goods / assets that are the subject matter of murabaha amangements. However, the Modaraba can
appoint the client as Hs agent to purchase the asselsigoods on ils behall, Therealler, ils sells these goods [ assels to the clisnl at cost
plus fhe profit agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and profit is recognized in accordance with
IFAS-1 (Murabaha) fo the extent of pro-rata portion of sale price received as compared to fotal agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale
revenue not due far payment is deferred and recognized as lability,

Musharikah investment

Diminishing musharikah financing is recognized initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, this is stated at original cost less
principal repayments,

Lease financing instalimants and diminishing musharkah financing are stated net of provision amd suspenss income, Provision s
recognized for lease financing installments and diminishing musharikah financing, n accordance with the Modaraba Regulations, 2021
for Modarabas. Bad debls are written-off when identified.

Other investments

[vestments intended to ke held for l8ss than twehse months rom the reporfing date ar to be sald ta raise operating capital are inchuded in
current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the classification of its investments at the
time of purchase depending on the purpose for which the investments are required and re-evaluates this dassification on regular basis

Investment in subsidiary

[vestment In subsidiary i initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to
determine the extent of impairmeant losses, if any, and carmying amounts of investmenis are adjusted accordingly. Impaimment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and offer comprehensive income. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the
carrying amaunts of the invesiments are increased io (he revised recoverable amaunts but limiled o the extent of inilial cost of
imeastments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss and ather comprehensive income.

Held-to-maturity investments

Investmants with a fixed maturity that the Modaraba has the infent and ability to hold o maturity are classified as held fo maturity
investments. These are initially recognized on trade date at cost and derecognized by the Modaraba on the date it commits to sell them
off. &1 subsequent reparting date they are measurad at amontized cost using the effective interast rate method

All purchazes and sales of investments are recognized on the frade date which is the date that the Modaraba commits to purchase or gell
the invesiment. Cost of purchass includes transaction cost,
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Judgments and estimates

Al each reporing dale, the Modaraba reviews the carrying amounts of the invesimant to assess whether there [s any indication that sy
investment has suffered an impairment loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order fo determing the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment kosses are recognized as expense in the staterment of profit snd loss and ofher
comprehensiva income. Impairment losses on available for sale investmenis are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated n
the fair value reserve to stalemant of profit and loss and other comprahensive income. Impairment losses recognized in the statement of
praofit and loss and other comprehensive incoma on equity instruments classiied as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income.

Development properties
Measurement

Property acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for sale in the ordinary course of business, ralher than to be held for rental
or capital appraciation, is classified as development proparties and is measured al lower of cost and net realizable value,

All project costs mcurred or to be incurred are capitalized a8 a cost of development properties and mainly includes costs | nghts for free-
held and leasehald land, construction cost, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal sarvices,
property fransfer taxes, construction overheads and olher related cosls necessary to bring the premises in saleable condition and
develapment chargas,

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, based on market prices at the reporting date less
gstimated costs of completion and the estimaled costs necessarily to be incurred o make the sale.

The cest of sales recognized in stalement of profit and loss and olher comprehensive income 8 delermined with reference o the costs
incurred on the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific costs based on the fofal area of land seid for property, in relation to
totzl area of land. The development charges are recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income on the basis
of reimbursable development costs recoverable to date from customers on property sold apporioned to 1olal area of land sold in relation
to total area of land. Development charges not recoverable from customers are bomne by the Modaraba and charged to statement of
prafit and loss and olher comprehensive income.

Impairment

Al each reporting date, development properties are zssessed for impaimment. |f hese impaired, the carryving amount is reduced to ils
seliing prica less costs to complete and sell, The impairment koss is recognized immediately in the cost of revenue in the statement of
prafit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Judgments and estimates

The Modaraba reviews the camying amount of development properiies on a regular basis. Carrying amount is adjusted where the net
realizable valus is betow the cost,

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

These are inifially recognized when they are originated at the fair value of the consideration receivable and subsequently measured at
amodized cost These assels are writen off when there s no reasonable expectation of recovery, Indicaloes that there 15 no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amengst others, the failure of a counter part to engage in a repayment plan with the Modaraba.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are caried In statement of financial position at cost, For the purposs of the cash flow siatement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short-tarm highly liqusd
instruments thal are readity converlible into known amounts of cash net of temporary bank or books overdrafts | overdrawn, if any,

Financing arrangements | funding

Markup / profit bearing funds | loans are recorded at the proceeds recenved. Borrowings sre subsequently slated at amortized cost, any
difference belwean the proceeds (net of ransaction costs) and fhe rademplion valus is recognized in the staterment of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income over the pericd of the borrowings using fhe effective interest rate method. Finance costs are accounted for
on accrual basis and are reported under accrued mark up fo the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Subordinated funds are classified as equity as per Modaraba Regulabions, 2021, whereas, s recognition ang measurement has baen
made in accordance with applicable accounting and reporting standards

Annual Report 2023 | 43|



41

4.12

Interest expense L&, profil payable iz sccountad for an the basis of the effective interest method and are included in finance costs which
are charged to income in the period in which thesa ara incurred.

Borrowings are reported under prafit payable to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid and are classified as current liabiiies unless
the Modaraba has an unconditional right to defer setlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Employees benefits
Short-term employes benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related sendce Is provided. A liability Is recognized for the amount expected to be pald
if the Modaraba has a presant lagal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a rasult of past senvice provided by the amployes and
the obligation can be estimated refiably.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a recognized postemploymant banefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution inte a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive oblgation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions fo defined contribution plans
are recognized as an employee benefil expense in the statermant of profit and loss and ofher comprehansive income when they are dus,
Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Modaraba operates a defined contribution plan in the form of recognized provident fund scheme for al eligible employees.
Confributions fo find are mads manthly by the Modaraba and employes at 8.33% of the basic salary. The Modaraba's contributions are
recognized as employea benefil expanse wien they are due, If contribution payments exceed the contribulion due for sarvice, the excess
is recognized as an asset

Defined benefit plan

The defined bensfl plan represents an unfunded and unrecognized gratuity scheme for its eligible employess completing prescribed
period of service in accordance with servica rules of the Modaraba. Defined benefit plans provide an amount of gratuity that an employee
will receive on or affer retirement, usually dependent on one ar more factors such as age, years of senvice and compensalion. & defined
benefil plan s a plan that is not a defined contribution plan. The lability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of
defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting pericd less the fair value of plan
assels.

The defined benefil obligations ere calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit methed, When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Modaraba, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan of reductions in fulure contributions to the plans. The present values of the
defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting the estmated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-guality corporate
bonds ar the market rales on government bond. These are denominaled in the curmency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to matwrity apgroximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Remeasurement gains / losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate fo the net balance of the defined benefit
obdigation and the falr value of plan assels. This cost is incuded In emploves benefit expense in the slatement of profit and loss and cther
comprehensiva incoma,

Judgment and estimates

In determining fhe babilty for long-service payments management must make an estimate of salary increases over the following five
years, the discount rate for the next fve years to use in the present value calculation, and the number of emplovess expected fo lesave
before they receive the benefits.

Taxation

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred taw. Income lax expense is recognized in the statement of profit amd loss, except to the
entent that i relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), and in which case the tax amaounts
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current

The current income lax charge 15 caleulaled on the basis of the @ laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect to situations in which applicable 1ax regulation is
subject o interprefation, 1t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expecied lo be paid 1o the tax autharilies.
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The Modaraba designate the amouni calculated on taxable income using the notified fax rate as an income tax within the scope of 145 12
‘Income Taxes' and recognize i as current income fax expense. Any excess over the amount designated as mcome fak, is then
recognized as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 217148 37,

Deferred

Dieferred tax is recognized using fe balance sheet method on all major temporary differences ansing between the carmying amounts of
assets and liabilities for irancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred (ax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. unused (Bx credis and unused tax Iossas (o the extent that it
is probabée thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differencas, carry forward unused (ax assets and
unused fax losses can be utilized. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extant hat it is mo longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all of part of the defarred 1y assals to be ulilized.
Deferred tax liabilties are recognized for all taxable femporary differences.

Deferred tax assel and liability 15 measured at the lax rate thal Is expecied fo apply to the year when the assel (s realized or the liability is
sattled, based on tax rates that hawe been enacted or substantively enactad by the reporting date.

Judgment and estimates

Significant judgment is required in defermining the income tax expenses and coresponding provision for {ax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate (x determination is uncertain as these matlers arg being contested at various lagal
forums. Modaraba recognizes liabilities for anticipated taw issues based on estimates of whether addifional {axes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts That were mitially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferrad tax assels and liabiities in the period in which such determination is mada.

Further, the camying amcant of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporiing date and is adjusted fo reflect the current assessment of
fubure taxable profits. i required, canying amount of deferred fax asset s reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficent
taxable profitz fo allow the benafit of part or all of that recognized deferrad tax asset to be utifized. Any such reduction shall be reversad
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Off-setting

Defarred tax assats and habiities are offs2l when there is & legally enforceable right to offset current tex assats and liabilities and when
the defered taw balances relate to the same taxation authority. Currant tax azsets and tax labilites are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offeet and intends either fo settle on a net basis, or fo realize the asset and settle the liability simulianecusly.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for supplies and services provided to the Modaraba prior o the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecursd and are usually paid within 60 days of recognition. Trade and other payvables are presentsd as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially af their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effactive interest method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party o the conlraciual provisions of
the instrurment.

Financial assets are de-recognized when the Modaraba loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset.

Financizl liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in fhe contract is dischanged,
cancelled, or expired,

Any gain or [oss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liahilities s included in the statermend of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income for the year,

Financizl instruments carried on the statement of financial posiion includes investments, long term loan, long term deposits, frade debts,
cash and bank balances, barrowings, frade and other pavables and accrued markup. The particular measurement methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the financial statemants only wihen fhere is a lagally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Modaraba intends sither o settle on a net basis or lo reslize the assets and to
setile the liabilites simultaneoushy.

Impairment

Financial assets

Financizl a5sets not carried at falr walue through profit of loss are assessed at each reparting date fo determine whether thers is objective
avidence of impaimeant. An impairment ogs in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between ils carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rale.
Impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured al fair value s determined by refarence to that fair value, Impairment losses on
available for sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying ihe losses accumulated in the fair value reserve to statement of profit
and loss and oter comprehansive income.

Al impaimment losses ana recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. An impairmant loss is reversed if
the reversal can be related objectvely to an event occumng afer the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed
anly to the extent that the financial asset’s carrving amount after the reversal does not exceed the carmying amound thal would have been
determined, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Prowision for non performing Islamic financing is made in accondance with the Modaraba Regulations, 2021 for modarabas ssued by
SECP vide SRO 284 (1) 7 2021 dated March 05, 2021 and subsequent amendrments made therain, and is charged fo statemant of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income.

MNon-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Modaraba's non-financial asseis, other than inventories and deferred lax asssts are reviewsd &t each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estmated. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifisble asset group that generates cash flows that largely are
indapendent from odher assets and groups. The recoverable amount of & asset or cash generating unit Is the grealer of ils value In use
ang its fair value kess cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the esfimated future cash fiows are discounted to their present values using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markst assessments of the time valie of money and the risks specific 1o the asset or cash
genarating unit,

An impairment loss i recognized if the camying amount of the assels or fs cash generating unit exceeds s estimated recoverable
amoaunt, Impairment losses are recognied in profil or loss, Impaiment (osses recognized in respect of cash generaling units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then to reduce the camying
amounts of the olher assets in the unlt on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized In prior periods sre assessed at each reporting
data for any indications that the loss has decreasad or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if thers has been a change in the
estimates used to determing the recoverable amount. An impairment Ioss is reversed anly to that extent that the asset’s carning amount
after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no
imparment loss had been recognized.

Provisions
Recognition and measurement

Prowvisions for legal claims and make good obligations ane recognized whan the Modaraba has a present lagal or constructive obligation
85 a resull of past events, i ig probable that an outfiow of resources will be required lo settle the obbgation and the amount can be
refiably esfimated. Provisions are not recognized for fufure operating losses.

Whare thera ara a numbar of similar obligations, the likefihood that an outflow will be raquired in settemant is datarmined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision i& recognized even if e likalihood of an cutow with respect ko any ane item included in
thee same ciass of abligations may be small.

Prowisions are measwred at the prasen! value of managemeant's bast astimate of (he expandilure required to sstile he present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used fo determing the present value i a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assassments of the fme value of money and the risks specfic to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of Gime is
recognized as interest expense.
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4.20

4.1

4.22

Judgement and estimates

As the actual oufflows can differ from estmates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectabions, technology.
prices and condibons, and can teke place many years in the fulure, the carmding amounts of provisions are reviewad al each reporting
date and adjusied to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previcusly recognized provision is recognized in
the statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income unless the provision was onginally recognized as part of cost of an
assat.

Contract liability

A contract liability is the obligation of the Modaraba to transfer goods o services to a customer for which the Modaraba has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Modaraba transfers
goods or services to the customer, a confract liability 15 recognized when the payment is made of the payment Is due (whichever i3
earlier). Contract liabilities ase recognized as revenue when the Modaraba performs under the contract. [t aleo includes refund liabilities
arsing out of cuslomers ‘right to claim amounts from the Modaraba on account of conbractual delays in delivery of performance
obdigations and incentive on target achisvaments.

Eamings per certificate

Earnings per cerfificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the year by weinhted average number of cerbficates
outstanding during Ihe vear, Diluled eamings per cartilicale is determined by adjusting the profil or loss atiributable fo ordinary cerlificate
holders by faking imto account the conversion of any diluted potential ordinary certificate.

Contingencies and commitments

A contingent liabslity is dischosed when the Modarabe has a possible obligation as a result of past evenis, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the sccurrence of non-occurence, of one or mole uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Modaraba; or the Modaraba has a present legal or consiruciive obligation that arises from pasi events, but it iz not probable that an
autflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o setle the obligation, or the amount of the ebligation cannat be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Capital commitments, unless those ana actual liabilities, are not incorporated in the books of accounts.

Judgement and astimatas

The Modaraba reviews the status of all pending liigations and claims against the Modaraba. Based on the judgment and the advice of
the legal advisors for the estimated financial oulcoms, appropriate disclosure oF provision & made, The actual outcome of thess
litigations ard claims can have an effect on the carmying amounts of the lisbilities recognized at the reporting date.

Dividends
Divicend distnbution to the shareholders is recognized 25 a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Modaraba that is engaged either in providing product or senices (business segment),
of In providing products or senvices within a particular economic anvirenmen! (geographical segment), which s subject to rsks and
rewards that are different from thoze of other segments. The Modaraba has only one reportable sagment.

Revenue recognition

ljarah rentals

[farah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis a2 and when the rantal becomes due unlass another systematic basis is more
representalive of the time pattern an which ihe benelt of use derved from the leased asset is diminished. Unrealized ijarah income
periaining to non-performing ijarah is held in a suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the
Modaraba Regulations, 2021,

Murabaha transaction

Profit on transactions under murabaha arangemenis is recognized on pro-rata basis taking inte account the elapsad duration for
payment of murabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit not due for payment in the current year is deferred by the accounting for
uneamed murabaha income with a correspanding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liabdlity, The same is then
recognized as revenue on a fime proportionate basis as ant when the due dates approach for payment of recoverable amounts by the
Cushomers,
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Musharikah transaction
Profit an musharikah arrangement is recognized on eccrieal basis, based on the amaount of autstanding principal.

Documentation and processing charges
Documentation and pracessing charges are recognized as incame on recsipt basis.

Sale of development properties

Fewenue from the gale of development propertios s recognized at the palnt in time when the parformance oblgations arising from the
confract with a customer |s satslied and the amaunt of revenue that it expecls 2 be entiied & can be determined. This usually oceurs
when contral of the asset is transferrad to the customer, which is when these properiies are fransfarred to the customers, Invaices &
generated and revenue is recognized ai that point in tme. Al the sales are on advance basis. Rewenue is measured bazed on the
consideration speciied in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behall of third parties. Revenue |s disclosad nat
of taxes, rafurns, rebades, discowunds and other allowances, if any.

Profit on bank deposit
Feturn on bank deposits is accounted for on a lime proporionate basis wsing tha applicablke rate of return | interast.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss as other income when:

the Modaraba's right bo recenve paymant have been eslablished
i probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend wil fiow io the Medaraba; and
{he amount of the dvidend can be meazured reliably.

Other income
Other income, if any, is recognized on accrual basig.

Cormrection of errors

In the prior years, Modareba has not recognized and measured staff refirement benefits Le. grafuily expanse and actuarial gain on
remegsurement &3 required by applicable accounfing and repording standards i, using Projecied Unit Cost (PUC) method, Sacondly,
sataries of the staff were recorded g5 receivabie rather than s expense to statement of profit and loss end other comprehensive income
under the haad “salaries and benofits®. The accumulated depreclation of larah vehicles was also overstaled a5 of Doecamber 31, 2022,
Income from jjarah rentals was oversiated for the yeer ended June 30, 2019, The impact of fhasa emors was considered mafenial an the
financig statements, hence refrospective adjusiments have been made on account of this gratuity expense, actuanal gain on
rameasurement, sataries of the staff, accurmulaled deprecialion of ifarah vehicles and cverstatement of ofher recalvables as per the
requirament of para 42 of the [AS - 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors™. The impact of correction & 88
Toliows:

Statement of financial wosition
Janizary 0, 2022 Decernber 31, 2022
= As previously  Adjustments As previously  Adjustments
Donctiption reported [decrease) e rewfuind reported (decrease) Au:ronleios
Rupees Rupeas

Crher receivables 07516503 (10635133 10835106 TBET 238 (14,081388) 104 TAR RSH
Receivable from provident fund - . . - 324,452 3452
Prowident fund payable - . . {3,458 3458 .
Stalf retirerment benefils - gratay (4419578 [3,635,261) (4,054,833} {B.468 354 {317,085 15,658 436)
Delemred tax 4,398,663 2335902 6,734,565 58,876,495 2,969,562 B1,046,067
Accumulated depraciation - jaan assats

Plant and machineny (M8,26146%)  (4400,857) (322 670,316 (303573 280)  (440BA5T  ([306.387 146)

Vaficles (242 536 [136) 4 408857 (239,129,179) (271,862,052, BEETIME (265275008
Accumulaied loss 471,759,082 11,834,482 483 B9 574 558,306,230 12,576,771 570,903,001
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Statement of profit and less and other comprehensive income

Description

Salares and benefils
Depraciatiion of ijarah assets
Loss bafore income f&x
Income tax (defemed tax)
Loss after income fax

Loss par cerificate
Other comprehensive income

Description

Cther comprehensive income - actuanal gain
Related income tax impact

Total comprehensive loss for the year

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Adjustments
M;m::;:sly increase | As rostated
" [decreasa)
Rupees

37,704,761 3,125,504 40,830,267
TE.453.4T1 {2,176,18T) 74,275,284
80,387,082 BT, 319 81,244 41
6,170,067 29,639 6,199,706
86,567,148 G476, 858 &7.544,107
254 0.03 257

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Adjustments
Asrtr::nc;zsly increase / Ag restated
{decrease)
Rupees
- 471,380 471,380
- (136, 700) {136,700
26,567,149 642 278 B7.209 427

Adoption of lAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum taxes and Final Taxes

The Modarzaba has classified its current income 1ax to the extent of income tax based on revenue i.e. minimum / fumover tax under the
saction 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 to levies as explaingd in IFRIC 21 "Lavies® pursuant to "[AS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum taxes and Final Taxes® issuad by Institute of Charterad Accountant of Pakistan, which clarifies that levies whose
calculation use data such as the gross amount of revenues, asses or labiliies o not meet the definition of income taxes provided in 1AS
12 Incorme Taxes® L. not within the scope of 1AS 12 rather are within the scope of [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Caontingent Assets”, The Modaraba opted to designate the amount calculated on faxable income using the notified lax rate as an income
taw within the scope of 1AS 12 Income Taxes' and recognize it as curent income fax expense. Ay excess over the amount designated
a8 meame tax, s (hen recognized as a levy faling under the scope of IFRIC 217145 37, The respective changes are explained in notes 37

and 38 to these financial stafements. The impact iz explained as follows:

Statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022

Loss hefore income e and minimum x| lavies

Lavias | minimum tax
Loss before income tax
Incame kax

As previowsly . coments  As restated
reported

81,344,401 . 81,344 401

- B4T 908 547 808

81,344 401 647,908 81,992,309

5,199,117 (647,908) 5,551,808
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2023 2022
Mote Rupaas Rupses
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software
Croist &1 4,495,000 4,495,000
Accumulsted amartization g2 13,439,383} 2,772,750)
1,055.607 1,722,250
B.1 Cost
Baance & al January 1, 4,495,000 2,445,000
Aditians = 2,000,000
Baance s at Decamber 31, 4,495,000 4.435,000
6.2 Accumulated amortization
Befance &5 at Janwary 11, (2,772,750} [2495,000)
Amortization fior the year 35 (666,643} (277, 750)
Baance s at December 31, 13,439,393} (2772750
Lifee {'Y'ears) 3 3
6.3 The amortization for the vesr has been charged under the head ‘adminisirative and
general expenses,
G4 Above mtangible assels include fuly amortized assels of Rs, 2495000 {2022; Rs.
2,485,000},
INVESTMENT N SUBSIDIARY T4 - 76,500,000
71 During fhe vear, 100% stake in whelly cwned subsidiary i.e. Punjab Capitsl Securities
(Pvt} Limiled wes sold tp uitimate parent i.e. The Bank of Punjab against tofel
considergtion of Ra. £5.487 million. The resutant gain has been disclosed in note 34
to ihesa finnacial statements,
LONG TERM MUSHARIKAH INVESTMENT - SECURED
Long term musharikah investment a2 305,245,045 872,228,440
Less: Current porfion of leng term musharkah invesiment 13 | 346,700,482} {331,072, 764)
458 544,566 541,155 678
8.1 Thig reprasants lang term musharikeh investmant - secured for & ferm of 1 1 10 years,
B2 The profit charged on thasa fadlities range fram 11.63% to 30.04% per annum {2022:
10.52% ta 22,34% per annum).
B3 Aging of long term musharikah investmenl-secured
Classification
Gansiered good 504,503,393 662,144, 263
Porifolio ciassified as non-performing
Oither asset eapacially mentioned [OAEM) 54,420,708 56,750,858
Subsiandard 32,607,482 18,220,810
Dol 3,145,244 3452 415
fi 115,540,223 130,651,074
84 205,741,655 210,084,157
B0, 245,048 72,228 440
&4 This raprazants classification inlo the calegories as delined in lhe Modaraba Regulations, 2021.
8.5 Thise ane secured agans! registared vehicles and equipment in lhe name of Medaraba, persanal guaranlees and posl dalad cheques.
6.6 The meximum autstandng smaourd of Musharikah loans given to Key Management Personnel Mr, Mudassar Kaiser Pal af any fime durng 1he
yearwas Rs. 2,014 113, (December 31, 2022: 3.240,000),
a7 The maxmum cutslanding amount of Mushanksh leans given to ather Employees of Modaraba at any fime during the year was nil. [Decamber

31, 2022 nil).
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LONG TERM MORABAHA INVESTMENT - SECURED

Larig lerm morabaha investment
Add: Uneamed marabaha income

Lags: Curnant porion of long term morabaha investment

Less: Current porfion of uneamed morabaha income

a1 This represents long term Marabaha imvestment - sacured for a serm of 110 3 years

9.2 The rate of profit on morabata fnances ranges from 19.02% 1o 25.59% per annum
(2022 7.30% to 13.56% per annum).

o3 Aging of long term marabaha investment - secured
Classification
Considerad goad
Fortiolio classified as non-parfomming
Ciiher assel especially mentioned (DAEM)
Substandard
Douttiul
Loss

04 This represenls classification irfo the calegores as defined in the Modaraba
Regulations, 2021.

2.5 These are secured aganst morgage of properdies, hypothecafion, persanal
fuarantzes and demand promissory noles.

10. Long Term Depasit

101 This repraseants non-interest bearing Securty depasits paid to Lahore Electric Supply
Company, Pakistan liobde Cammunication Limied and Central Depository Campany
of Pakistan

DEFERRED TAX

ljmrah asseds

Hszats in own usa

Provision against financing | imvestments

Gratuity

Browght forward e losses

Deferred tax asset as of December 31

Deferred tax asset as of January 01

Defarred tax related OCH items

Deferred tax credited [ {charged) to profit or loss

14

203 2

Kote Rupees Rupass
56,533,457 46,975 957
13,445 167 14,275,728
71,978,624 f1,251 fig2
1 {50,913,112) {29,145 447)
21,065,512 32,106,238
13 {7,563,506) (5,244 732)
13,502,006 26,661 506
16,322,205 27 Bk 904
. 10,350,963
25,599,588 -
5,811,664 -
B,B00,000 8,600,000
94 40,211,252 16,150 963
58,533,457 46,075 957

10 203,444 03444
32,133,501 26,800 720
02 402 156,561
34,634,871 20,287 525
2,688,735 2,601,238

39,298,468 -
109,657,377 51,046,067
(61,046,067) (66,734 565
801,450 136,700
38 49,513,360 (5,551,798)

Defernad tax assel on deductble temporary diferences has been recognized to the exent of suficent probable fure taxable income of The
Modaraba, however, defierred Lax gssets in respect of lhe Tolowing deductible temporary differances has nod besn recognized in these financial
staterments as follows:
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Prossions againgt financing f investments 264,025,035 76,567,260 236222 B9 B8 504 641
Unused tax losses 278,207 607 80,706,306 340,722,060 88,800,397
Unussed tax credils 7427341 - 3403530
542,322 642 164,700,307 576,944,850 170,717 566
1.2 Dafarrad tax on tax lossas nol recognized waould expire as Tolows:
ﬁa: losses | [Expiry date - Tar loses Expiiry date - 2
tax year year
Rupees Rupaes
47,369, 488 2025 28 756,896 2024
113,458,004 2026 53,380,535 225
16,519,347 2z 124,280,852 2026
. 2028 B7.157.730 2027
- 2029 15 587 B58 2028
100,952,768 2030 50,938,780 2029
278,297,607 340,722 (0
13 Tax cradits not recognized wouwld axpire as folows:
Ripaas - 2023 Rupsas - 2022
Tax corisfiln Enpiry date - 1 T (rodis Erpity dotn - lax year
v
Rupees Rupees
Turnauer tax 3,403,930 2026 3.403.530 2026
Turnguer tax 4,023 411 2027 - -
7427, 341 3,403,530
2023 222
Mote Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM MORABAHA INVESTMENT-SECURED
Short term marabaha invesiment 375,906,691 407,775,181
A Uneamed marabaha income - 1,224 656
375,006,501 408 590,837
Less: Provision for doubtiul morabaha investment 123 (202,459,373} (711,503,873
173,447 518 197 495 954
121 This raprasants shorl lerm Morabaha irvestment-sacured for a term of 3 months 1
Faar.
122 The rate of profit on morsbaha finences renges from 23.42% fo 26.43% per ennum
{12022; 10.75% o 31% per annum),
123 Provision fer doubtful morabaha investment
Opeaning balance 211,503,873 214,253 873
Additiors during the year - -
Ravarsals during the year {3.044,500) {2.750,000)
(9,044,500} (2,750,000}
Closing balance 202,459,373 211 503 873
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124 Aging of short term morabzha investment-secured
Classification
Considered good
Portlobo chassifind as non-parfarming
Other asset especially mentioned (OAEM)
Substandard
Droubefial
Loss

125 Thia represents dassificaton inlo ihe categories as defmed in the Modaraba
Regulalions, 2021.

126 These are secwed aganst morgage of propertes, hypolhecation, personal
quarantees and demand promissary Noles,

CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Currant parfion of lang ferm musharikah investiment
Principal diss but not recanved
Less: Prowision egainsi musharikeh mvesimant

Current poriion of long term morzbaha investment
Aaid: Uneamed marshaha income
Less; Provision against morabsha investment

131 Prowision agains! musharikah investment

Opening balance
{Reversad) | chargad during the year

Closing balance
13.2 Provision agains! morabaha investment

Opening balance
Change during the year

Closing balance

JARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLES

ljarah rental receivable
Less; Provision againsi ijarah rental receivable

144 Provision against ijarah rental receivable

Opaning balance

Charge during the year

Transfer of impairment

Bevarsal of provision during the year

Closing balance

2023 202
Mote Rupees Rupees
- 32,576,000
- 4989998
3,010,000 -
5,900,000 -
365,906,501 370,189,163
12.5 375,506,801 375,189,161
375,506,891 407 773161
g 197,507,820 152 542,504
] 148,182,653 178,429,860
134 {26,621,425) (28,287 758)
122,511,228 150,142,062
320,079,087 302, 7H4 966
g 50,813,112 20,145 447
] 7,563,506 5,244 732
132 (8,800,000 {8,500,000)
49,676,618 25580179
359,755,675 128,375,145
28,287,758 26,552,918
11,665,373) 1,584,872
26,621,425 268,267,798
8,500,000 8,600,000
8,800,000 8,800,000
189,621,155 2323801
141 (78,258,450) {78 6E7,052)
111,362 665 144,571,950
T8 66T 052 57,372,051
6,360,932 6,017,112
- 16,687 455
16,769, 404) 1,419,610)
78,258 450 78,667,052
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2023 k]
MNote Rupsaes Rupees
14.2 Aging of ijarah rantal receivable
Classification
Consderad good - 1485 466
Pertiolio classified as non-perfoeming
Ciher aszel ezpecially mentioned (CAEM) 1,751,532 3,102 524
Substandard 9,709,640 3,543 365
Doubtul 1,368,894 17,354,193
Loss 176,700,880 169,853 811
14.4 184,621,155 215,852,893
188 621155 219,743,350
143 Futura ljarah rentzls recaivable
Agaregale amound of fulure ijarah ranlals receivable on the basis of agreemenis
exgcuted up Lo reparting date are a2 folows:
Lp to are year 103,090, 586 BRETE, T04
Above one year and up o five wear 33,336,027 1348109 144
136,426,613 224 585 643
144 This rapresants dassification irlo the calegories ag defimed in the Modaraba
Regulalions, 2121
145 These are secured against regisiered vehicles and equipment in the name of
Modaraba, parsona guarantees and post dated chegues
145 The madmum amount owstanding of farsh lbans given o key managsment
persannal and ather employeas of Modaraba are as follows;
Mr. Mudassar Kaiser Pal 3055116 4,113 684
Mr. Sagib Shamim 2,049,350 2398 152
Oikar amployees 3,315,587 5.084,196
8,420,253 11,796,142
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Rupees-2021
First Habib Modaraba NRSP Bank [slami | | U Microfinance Tatzl
Microfinance Pakistan Bank Limited
Bank Limited Limitad
Opening balance 200,000,000 - - - 200,000,000
Irvesirments made during (e year 300,000,000 133,000,000 33,000,000 50,000,000 516,000,000
Matures during the year (250,000,000} 166,000, 000) - (50,000,000} |3646,000,000)
Cloging balance 250,000,000 7,000,000 33,000,000 - 350,000,000
Rupess-2022
First Habib Modarata MASP Mcofnance Bark Ishari U Micrrisarce Bank Taisl
Bienk Limiled Pakistan Liriss Limitesd
(pening balance 20,000,000 - - - 200,000,060
Investments made during the year 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
Matured during the year (50,000,000} - - - (50,000,000}
Closing balance 200,000,000 - - - 200,000,000
1581 These camying mask-up &t a rale ranging from 16.5% fo 24.15% (2022 11.25% to

16.5%}) per annum,
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16 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

18

19

Construcied
Un-constructad

181 Davalopment properfies are siawed at the lower of cost and net realizable vale
(NRY),

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Profit receivable
- Marataha invesirmant
- Musharikah Imvestment

Prepaymenis

Advances

Mor-oenking assets
Receivable from provident fund
Crher recenables

Less: Provision againsd ather receivables

174 This ncludes advances to employees ageinst expenses amounting to s, 399,358
12022 Re. 106.224) and sdvances o emplyyees against salary amounting & Re.
104,440 [2022- Rs. nill | a5 of reporfing dabe.

17.2 Provision against other receivables

Opaning balance
Change | [revarsal] during the year
Closing balance

173 This reprasents amounl recoverabla fram dients far axpenses incured on fheir behal
since the ircaplion of modataba, including receivables arising Trof garah, mushankah
and morabaha transactons.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash &t banks

- Current Boosunls

- Deposit accounts

- Savings accounis

- Cwrrent account with State Bank of Pakistan

Cash in hand

184 The balence of Re. 14,206,269 (3022 Ra, 23.682,562) Is maintained with The Bank
of Purjab (the halding company of the Modarata Company).

18.2 This accoumt Is wlilzed by the Modaraba for the payment of ondne changes of the
Electronic Credit Information Bureau,

AUTHORIZED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
MODARAEA CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

Autharized cartificats capial
50,000,000 modaraba carlificates of Rs. 10 each

2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupses
40,881,225 16,004 903
8,815,359 37,364 705
49,506,584 53,369,608
5,319,857 9,310,807
22,104,533 4435141
27,514,350 13,735,948
1,830,921 29115
174 6,704, 75T 11,980,953
- 4,772,500
2,343 847 324 452
173 185,614,583 104,783 851
224,104,498 138 583 837
17.2 (67,316,336 19,955,643
156,768,162 128,628,154
9,955,643 11,128,282
57,360,683 11,172 644
67,316,336 9,955 643
10,621,161 21,532171
1,382,743 2,683,368
221,188,588 2166187
18.2 99,974 3522
133,172,466 206,580,758
72, 451 85,029
233,544 957 26,675, TEY
500,000,000 500,000,000
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181 Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital

023 2022 23 02
Numbars Numbars Rupees Rupess
20,000,000 20,000,000 Modaraha certificates of Rs. 10 each 00,000,000 200,000,000
fully paid in cash
14,020,000 14,020,000 Modaraba carificates of Rs. 10 aach 140,200,000 140,200,000
issued &s fully paid in bonus
certificabas
34,020,000 34,020,000 340,200,000 340,200,000
152 Following certificates held by associated companies of the Modaraba:;
21 2022
Mumber of Rupees Mumber of Rupess
certificates ceriificates
Punjab Medaraba Services (Pvt) Limited 13,320,694 133,206,940 13,320,694 133,206,340
The Bank of Punjab Employees Gratuity Fund 5,009,500 50,995,000 5,059,500 50,995,000
The Bank of Punjah 4,788 47,880 4,768 47 880
18,424 9582 184 249 820 16,424 952 184, 245 820
2023 v
RESERVES Mote Rupees Rupess
Capital reserve
Statutory ressre 2041 18,176,678 218,176 678
Revenusa reserves
Accumulated loss (680,257,522)  (570,903.001)
(462,080,844) (352,726.323)
201 Statutory reserve represents profits set aside to comply with the Modaraba
Requiations, 2021 issued by the SECP
SUBORDINATED FUNDS 500,000,000 -
2141 Thig represents funds extandad by The Bank of Punjab - pareat company Le. major
sporsee under Musharikah Agreemenl dated Oclober 27, 2023 a5 @ supporl o
improve the eguily base of the Modaraba and classified as equily under the
provigions aof Modaraba Reguiations, 2021, This amount |8 unsecured, repayablo In
fhree years tme Le. June 30, 2026 and carmies profit at the rate of 18.61% per annum
payable semi-annually,
LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Leng term security deposits against ||arah 221 92,802,756 110,640 532
Less: Current maturity of security depasits 26 {90,762, 796) (102,235,850
2,140,000 8,403,800
Fr A | This rapresants. security deposits payable | adustable in respect of assats given
under largh arangements {IFAS-2).
DEFERRED MORABAHA INCOME
Deferred marabzha income - lang term 231 13,445,167 14 275,728
Less; Current maturity of deferred morabaha incame 26 i7,563,506) {5,244 732)
5,881,661 9,030,396
Dafamed morabeha incoma - sharl lem - 1,224 666
5,881,661 10,255 662
231 These regresent receivabies against merabaha transactions on defermad payment basis at profit margin which ranges from 15.02% 1o 25 59%

per annum (2022 ; 7.3% to 31%)
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2023 il
Note Rupees Rupees
STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY 241 9,271,400 3,650,436
The Modaraba operates an approved fundad gratuity schame for all of its permanent employaas.
Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carmied out every year and the latest actuarial waluation was
camed out a5 &t Decamber 31, 2023 using the Projecied Unil Credi Method
Mumber of employees under the scheme 35 35
244 Movemant in the liability recognized in the statemant of financial position
Cpening ned liability 9,659 436 8,054 B33
Amount charged to profil and loss account 2,788 118 2,191 087
Amount (credited) [ charged 1o ofher comprehensive income {3,108,447) {471,380)
Banefils paid during the year {68,608) {115,104
(387.83T) 1,604,603
Closing net fiability 9,271,498 3,658,436
242 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 9,659 436 4,054 833
Current senice cost 1,383 474 1,251 406
Interast cost on defined benefit obligation 1,385 644 030,681
Benefits paid (68,60B) [115,104)
Actuanial {gains) { logses from changes in financal assumptions 18,385 49 494
Exparience adustrmants 13,126,832 [520,674)
Closing balance 9,271,408 9,650,436
243 Expense recognized in the profit and loss account
Current senice cost 1,383,474 1,251 406
Interest cosi on defined benefit obligation 1,395 644 4358,681
2,783,118 2,191,087
244 Amount chargeable to other comprehensive income
Actuarial {gains) | losses from changes in finandal assumptions 18,385 49,494
Experience adjustmenis 13,126,832 (520,874)
13,108.447) {471,380
24.5 Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for interest costin profit and kess chamge 14.50% 11.75%
Digeount rate used for vear and obligation 15.50% 14.50%
Salary increase ussd for year end ohligation:
Safary increasze FY2023 NI& 13.500%
Salary fncrsase FY2024 14.50% 13.50%
Salary Incregse FY2025 14.50% 13.50%
Safary increase FY2026 14.50% 13,500
Salary increase FY2027 14.50%, 13.50%
Safary increase FY2028 14.50% 13.50%
Safary increase FY2029 anward 14.50% 13.50%
Mext salary iz increased 1-Jan-24 1-Jan-23
Mortality rates SLIC 2004 - 2005  SLIC 2004 - 2005
Setback 1 Year  Sefback 1 Year
Withdrawal ratas Age-Based hpe-Bazad
Retirement assumption Age &0 Age 60
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4.8

4.7

248

244

a0

2411

2023 nz

Sensitivity Analysis Mote Rupaes Rugess
Year end sensitivity analysls on defined benelit sbllgation
Discourt Rate + 100 bpz 8,575,385 8,955,535
Discount Rate - 100 bps 10,051,437 10,444 360
Zalary Increase + 100 bps 10,063,898 10,458,138
Salary Increase -100 bps 8,552 455 8932338
Expense chargeable in the profit and loss account for tha next year is as
Current sarvice cost 1,393,474 1,251 406
Inlerast cost on defined banefil obligation 1,305,644 930 581

2,763,118 2,101,087
The expacted maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefits is as follow:
Financial Year 2023 - J61.718
Financial Year 2024 380,796 431,454
Finarcial Year 3025 453,118 FET
Finariial Year 2026 544,205 613548
Financial Year 227 1,106,622 1,268,705
Financial Yesr 2028 767,937 857420
Financial Year 2028 1,970,148 8,865,344
Finarcial Year 203} 1,015,716 305458
Financial Yesr 2031 1,800,896 3,523,784
Financial Year 2032 6,913,884 5,562 82
Financial Year 3033 15,678,227 15678227
Financial Year 2034 orwards 157,832,179 107 410,676
The weightad average duration of the ablgation (in years) 3 &

Funding policy

The Modaraba endeavors to ensure that lisbilty under employes benefit scheme is covered by the Fund on any valuation date having regards to
the various echearid assumplions such as projecied fulure salary increass, expectad fulure contributions to the Fund, prajected incresss in
liabiity mssociabad with future service, eic.

Fodlowing are the significant risks assoclated with Lhe staff reirement benefit scheme. These may include:

Life expactancy §
Withdrawal rate
Asset volatility

Final salary risk

Tha risk of highar ar lower withdrawal experienca than assumead, The final effect cauld go eilher way dapanding

on the beneliciaries’ serdcaiage distibution and tha benafi.

The risk that the actial martalty experiencs ig diffierent, The effect depends on the beneficianies’ sarvice | age

distrbution and the benefit

The rigk that the final salary & the time of cessalion of sarvice is greater than what we assumed. Sinca the

bensfit is calculatad on the final salary, the benefit amount increasas similary.

REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - PARTICIPATORY AND UNSECURED

Cartificate of musharkah - ursecu red 251 1,485,000,000 -
251 This raprasents maunt frensfered fram ehert 1erm redzemable capital o lang term

radeamable capila’ as per lerms agread with the Bank of Punjab - parent company to

finance the working capital requirements of the Madaraba. This amaound is tnsacurad,

rapayable in heee years lime and carmas profil al (ke rabs of 1861% per anrum

payabla sami-annually.
CURRENT MATURITY OF NON CURRENT LLABILITIES
Current maturity of long ferm security deposits 22 80,762,796 102,235,839
Current maturity of defemed marshaha income 13 7,563,506 5244732

98,326,302 107 481,621
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2023 Mz

Motz Rupees Rupess
17 REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - PARTICIPATORY AND UNSECURED

Certificate of Musharikah
Opening balance 1,625,000.000 1,603,000, 000
Add: lszued during fhe yaar 340,000,000 225,000,000
Adg: Re- issued during the year 1,500,00:0,000 1,600,000,000
Less: Redeemed during the vear {2,450,000,0000  {1,603,000,000)

1,485,000,000 1.625,000,000
Transferred o non current labilty 251 {1,485,000,000) -
Cloging balance - 1,625,000,000
74 The carlificates of rrugharikal have been ssuad with a maturily upto 3 months. The

.z

share of profit pavable ranges from 14.70°% o 22.10% per annum (2022 7.5% to
15.80% per annumj]

These funds have been availed and ulilized dunng the yesr to financa the warking
cagilal requiraments of the Modaraba.

i PROFIT PAYAELE

Fedeamabla capital - paricipatary and unsecuned 95,052,002 28,096,745
Subardnated funds 8,208,794 -
103,300,796 28,096,745
2% TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Acirued expenses 291 5,700,135 G00.000

Tax caducted at spurce 620,792 1,359,146
Advencas against §arah | morabaha / mushankah 18,322.724 18917300
Other payablas 61,448,085 168,877,301
86,151,716 37753747

231 This noluges an amount of Re. 4,016,835 (2022 nl) in respect of rent of head office

payable to Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt) Limited - Modaraba Management
Company.

i CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Jaa
naa

maz

Contingancies
Proceedings under section 62 and 135 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 - Tax Years 1957-1098 & 1593-19540

The Daputy Commissioner Inand Raverua (DCIR), while finalizing assessments for the assessmant years 1007-1908 and 1998-1999 passad
oeders dated 24 Fabruary 2004 end 29 Agril 2002 under sections 62 and 135 of the Incoms Tex Ordnance, 1979 (the "Ordnanca”). The DGIR
made cerzn add backs on account of prafit and |oss expenses and completed tha assessment at ned income of Rs. 72,070,564, Baing aggrieved
with the decision of the DCIR, the Modaraba fled e appaal bedsre the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR (A against the said
orders. The CIR (&) vide order dated 30 Apnil 2005 uphekd tha ardars of the DCIR.

Beirg aggheved with the decision of CIR (A), the Modaraba fled second appeal before the Appellant Trbural Infand Revenise (ATIR), who
cecided the case i favor of the Mocarasba and disposed of he appeal. The mcome tax department has filed a reference before Lahore High
Court, Lahare. The Lahore High Couwt, Lahore heand the appeal and remanded back the case o ihe Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
vide Order FTR No,208/2008 deted 26 November 2120, However, 1ill date no nofica has bean received from ATIR in this respact,

Proceedings under section 122{54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 - Tax Year 2003

The Addifions CommissanenTaxation Officer issued order dated 28 December 2008 under section 122(54) of the Ordnanca while rejecing the
examplion claimad from tax under Clause 100 of Par | of Second Schedule ke the Ordinance and making addiions on account of poovision far
bad debls in the xable income of the Modaraba, which resullad in a tax Bability of Rs. 27 410,608, Tha Modaraba filed a rectificaton application
under seclion £21 of the Ordinance contesting that the Addl. CIR charged lax at ihe rale of 35% whereas apphcabls rate In case of Modaraba s
25%. Thuss, a rect fcation Onder was passed dated 31 January 2000, reducng the tax kabiity to Rs. 14,580,110, The Modaraba ateo filed appeal
pefore the CIR (A}, who accepled the claim of exemption and issved a Tavorable decision vide Onder Mo, 31 dated 27 June 2009 by deleting the
entire reciified tax lisbility of Rs. 14,580, 110. The income tax deparimend has fled a second appesl before ATIR against the order of CIR (A,
which wes derided in favar of the Modaraba, The income fa department hes fied a reference before Lahore High Court, Lahone which &
pending adjudication. We ara hopeful that the matter will be decided in favor of the Modaraba
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Proceedings under section 122{5A) of the Ordinance - Tax Year 2005

The Additienzl Commissicner Inland Revenue {Aokl. CIR} issued crder dated 29 December 2008 under seclicn 122(54) of the Ordinance while
rejecting the exemption clemed from fax under Clause 100 of Part | of Second Schaduls to fhe Ordinance, which resulted in & lax lisbility of Rs.
17,667 886. The Modarsna has fled a rectification application comesting thet the Addl CIR has charped tax at the rate of 35% wheress
appicable rale in case of laxpaver company is 25% which is pending Bl date. Moreover, faxpayer company has also fied aopeal o the
Commigsionar Inland Fevenus (Apsed) [CIR [4)]) against tha oider passed under sackan 122{684) of tha Ordirance, who accepled e claim of
examplion and issued a favorable decision vide order Mo, 49 dated 28 May 2012 by daleting the antire 12 liability of Rs. 17 667 885, The income
tax depariment has fled an appeal before the ATIR against the order of GIR (4], which has been decided In favor of the Modaraba, The income
tax depariment has filed a reference befare the Lahore High Court, Lahore which iz parding adjudication.

The Deputy Cammissloner Inlang Feverue [DCIR) issued Show Cause Motice dated 20 June 2022 under section 182(1) of the ordinance, the
Modaraba has duly made compliance however, the DCIR issued e arder dated 13 October 2022 and created the tax demand amourting to Rs.
710,000, Being dissatised with he crder passed by the DCIR, the Modaraba preferred an appesl before CIR (Appeals). The CIR {A) vide order
dated 2§ December 2023 cisposed of the appeal and remandes back the case to the depariment. The depariment has nof initiatad remand back

04 Proceedings under section 182{1) of the Ordinance - Tax Year 2021

proceadings fil data.
0.z Commitmeants
30.21 There are no ljarah Commitments spproved but not dsbursed an balance sheel due date (2022 nil),
30.2.2 Morabaha commitments approved but not disbursed &s on balance shest dabz amount to Rs. il (2022: nil),
3023

Mugharkah commitments approved but it disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs, Mil (2022; nil)

2023 22
Maote Rupaes Rupess

INCOME FROM LJARAH RENTALS
ljarah neame 125,042,625 175,666 928
Less: Depreciabion on jarah asselz (B5,524,307) 1133,479.201)

40,518,318 42 187 727
GAIN FROM SALE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
Revenue from contract with customers 17,300,000 -
Cost of revenue [14,712,623) -
Mat gain 2,587,377 5
GAIN [ {LOSS) ON DISPDSAL OF ASSETS
Gar an dispasal of non-banking assals 620,000 T 500
(Gam an dsposal of assels inuse 523 1,000,000 32500
Gan | (loss) on disposal of ljarah assats 3,604,014 (5,422,103

3,224,014 {6,072.103)

OTHER INCOME
Profil on bank degosils 63,355,147 29,863,301
Processing fee 935,279 1,500,978
Arhviging fies 14000 2,401,000
Chegue retum charges 1,731,000 2,340,752
Gain on disposal of subsidiary 74 8,987,000 -
Gan on setfement of musharikan 1,241,336 6,412,753
|Loss) (gain on sallement of marabaha 13%0,3E9] 15,648 324
Other payable wrilkan back 2,084,624 -
Miscallanecus ncome 1,162,548 1,238.454
Dividend incorme . 4,319,354
Rebate income from Lakalul . 3,158,303

79,150,545 6,903,960
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2023 02
Mote Rupees Rupeas
35  ADMINISTRATIVE AND GEMERAL EXPENSES
Salarles and benelils 354 40,587,311 40,530,267
Traveling and canveyance 404,654 119,003
Legal and professionsl 4,655,188 174,500
Printing and statianary 1,861,795 1,168,824
Insurance 4,234,341 3,385,382
Fee and subscripsion 3,650,470 5123168
Auditor's remuneration 352 1,004,800 935,000
Repair and maintenance 2,753,952 1,857 170
Wehicle rumning and maintenance 1,174,753 4595914
Power and utiities 2,456,500 2,245,300
Enteriainment 1,295 636 778,157
Debit batance no more recoverable / adustable wntien off 211,512 -
Avertsamment 167,000 300,578
Telephone and postaps 1,077,795 BB5 TER
Carporate expenses 590,261 79,162
Ranl. rates and laxes B3 5,577,778 JET 000
Seling and markaling expanses 1,022,007 4,715,705
Depreciation -agsats in uze 52 1,538,885 1,252,539
Amanization of inlangible assals 6.2 666,643 217,750
Miscallaneous expensas 3,199,874 3,813,288
79,802,200 50,586,129
351 Thie indudes contribufion of Rs. 1120446 (2022 Rs. 1,0B4241) to the staff
provident fund and expense in respect of unfunded gratuity scheme amounting to Rs.
2.788,118 (2022: R= 2,191 0BT).
352 Auditors’ remuneration
Annual sudit fee 500,000 500,000
Half yearly review 250,000 250,003
Oul ol pockel axpensa 184,800 185,000
Cedtificabion fee Tl fi s
1,004,800 935,000
353 This includas an amount of Rs. 4 916,835 (2022- nl] in respect of rent of head offica.
3 FINANCE COST
Financial charges an redeemable capital 348,869,167 220,300,804
Financial charges on subordinated Inan 8,208,794 -
Bank charges 32935 189,905
Finandal charges on musharnkah - 186,055
158,390,896 220 GEE,TE4
Restated
2023 nx
Mote Rupees Rupeas
37 LEVIES
Minimum {ax 4 365,046
Prior year adjusimeani 3,403,930
7,769.876 -
Final L on deidend income . Gd7 308
7,769,876 547,908
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This reprazants parion of minimum fx paid undar section 113 and final f2x on dividend incoma under seclion 150 of Income Tax Ordirance, 2001 (ITO,
2001), rapraganting levy in barms of requirements of IFRIC 21/185 37,

INCOME TAX

Currant

Deferred

381

18z

183

384

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with
currant tax recognized in the prafil and loss account, is as lollows:

Currend tax liability for the year as per applcable fax laws
Parlion of curand tax Eability as par tax laws, representing incaome lax under 1AS 12

Portlan of cufrent taw compulad a8 per iaw laws, representing bavy In lemns of
requrements of IFRIC 29145 37

The aggreqate of minimum ! fing’ tax and income ta amounting {o Rs, 4,356 milion
(2022 Rs. 0.548 milion} represents tax liability of the Company calcuated under the
relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Provision for taxation has been made in accardance with section 113 of Income Tax
Crdinance, 2001. There is no relationship babween aggregale incoms tax smpensa
gnd accownbing praft before income lex. Accordingly, ng numencal reconcliation is
prasanted.

The Modaraba computes ta based on the generally acoapted interpretations of the
e laws 1o ensure that sufiicent provision for the purpese of texation [s available,
During ihe year, Finance Acl, 2023 enacted & tumover e rake of 1.25% (2022:
1.25%) and the normal lax rele of 29% (2022; 20%), tersfore, provision for the
currand 1ax is mads (@ 1.25% (2022; 1.25%) of the incame J burnavar, The deferred
tax is compided ab the rabe of 29% (2022 29%).

LOSS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

394

|2

Basie logs per contificate

Loss after taxation for the year

Weighted average rumber of ordinary cartificales oulstanding during the period
Lass per carlificale - basic and diluted

Dibutad

Rislated
2023 Hz2
Mot Rupees Rupess
i 49,513,360 5,551,798
(48,513,360 5,561,798
4,365,946 647 908
14,365.946) {647 908)
Restated
203 o)
(Rupeas) 1111,561,518) (87 544,107
{Mtmbars) 34,020,000 34020000
(Rupess) {3.28) {2.57)

e figure for dilited eamings per cerfificats has been presented as the Modaraba has nol issued any instruments which wauld have an imgact an

lo=s | aamings per carlificale when axarcised.

SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND OTHER BENEFITS

The aggregate amount charged in the financial stalemeants for remuneration b officers and other employees of the Madaraba s as Sollows:

Annual Report 2023 | &9 |



December 31, 2023

Officers Other Total
employees
Mote Rupees Rupees Rupees

Ramuneration 5,919,723 11,277,564 17,197,287
Bonus 961,638 1,501,221 2,462,859
House rent allowance 2,367,689 4,513,015 6,680,904
Utifity allowance 591,972 1,128,254 1,720,226
Medical allowance 591,972 1,128,254 1,720,226
Provident fund contribution 385,573 THBT3 1,120,446
Gratuity 247 960,082 1,820,036 2,789,118
Expensas reimbursed 3,637 437 3,058,808 6,696,245

15,416,286 25,171,025 40,587,311
Mumber of emplayess at the year end 4 35 19
Avarage no of amployess 4 36 40

The company secrelary has been provided & vehicle on liarah,

December 31, 20E2 [Restated)

Officars Other Total
BMpOVEES
Note Rupees Rupaas Rupees

Rermuneration 4,654,438 16,888 150 21,542 588
Bonus 408,081 2 908 463 3,316,549
House rent allowance 1,560,375 5112 762 6,673,137
Utility allowance 380,094 1,278198 1,668,292
Wedical allowance 380,094 1,276,198 1,668,292
Pronident fund contribution 324 948 759,283 1,064,241
Gratuity 4.7 634,639 1,556,448 2,191,087
Expenses reimbursed 1,883,039 793042 2,686,081

10,255,708 30,574 559 40,830,267
Mumber of employees al the year end 2 39 41
Average number of employess 2 38 40
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42 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As ot December 31, 2023

Camying value | Amoriizedcost|  Fair value | Tatal

Financial assots Rupeos Rupees Rupaes Rupaes
Lo temn musharikah investment - secuned 453 544,568 450,544 566 - 458,544,568
Leng tarm maranaha investmant - sacured 12,502, 006 13,502,006 - 12,502, 008
Lo termn secirity daposis 203,444 203,444 - 203,444
Short term morabaha imvestment - securad 171447 38 T3 447518 . 171447 318
Cusranl mabrity af kang beem invesiment 368,755,675 360,755,675 - 368,755,675
ljareh rertial recaivalie 111,362, 665 11, I62.665 B 111,362,665
Shor lerm Fresiemant 350,000, 000 350,000,000 . 350,000,000
Proift and other raceivables 148,162,484 148,162 484 - 145,162,484
Cash and bank balarces 231584957 233544957 . 233,584,957

1,834 523, 15 1,836,523 515 - 1,834.523, 313
Financial liabdities
Subordinaled funds 500,000,000 500,000,000 - 500,000,000
Redzamabla capital - paricipatony and unsecured 1405000000 1,465,000.,000 . 1.485.000,000
Pratt payatle 402,300,796 403,300.796 . 103,300,796
Trade and other payables 67,148,200 &7, 148200 . 67,148,200
Ursiained divdensd 17,190,455 17,100,485 . 17190435

AT A48 317 639 481 - 2,178 3,48

s 6t Decamber 31, 2022
Camyirgvalue | Amodlizedcosl | Fairvalue | Tolal

Financial assats Rup=es Rlupess Rupees Rupees
Long tarm musharnikah invastmant - secured 541 155,676 41, 155676 - 541,155,676
Long tam marabaha invesiment - secured 36,861,506 26,861,506 - 6,561,508
Long tam security daposis 203,444 203,444 - 203,444
Shot lerm morabaha mwestment - decunad 15T 445 54 197 q85.954 - 1T 445,554
Cusrenl maburity af kang term investment 328,375,145 F28,375,145 - J2BAT5, 145
Ijarah rerial recelvabie 144 571,550 144 571 958 E 144 571,550
Short larm imvestmant 200,000,000 200,000,000 - 200,300,000
Proft and othwer recanabies 108 564, 156 104,568,158 . 108,564,156
Carsh and bank balarces 26 675, TET 28 875,787 - 26 TS, TET

1,573.908 627 1,573,906.627 = 1,573,908 627
Financial liabiities
Redeamable capilal - parficipatory and unsecured 1,826.000,000  1,825,000,000 L 1,825,000,000
Proift payabls 28 095,745 28,0596 745 - FE008,T45
Trade and oihér panables AT 477,31 17477301 - 147730
Uniclaimad gividend 17191, 376 17 181 276 - 17,181,276

1,887,765,332 1857, TES.322 = 1,887, 765,332

43 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Tiva Board's palicy is bo mainlain @ sound capital base 5o a6 fo mantain mvesior, creditor and market confidance and fo suslain fulure devalopmert of the busness. The Board
of Directars of management company manitars the relurn on capital, which fe Modaraba defnes g net profil after laxation divided by Lot Cadificale holders' aquity. The
Board of Directors alse moniters e ‘evel of dividend fo adinary Certificade holdars. Tnere wene no changes o frie Modaraba's spproach fo capifal menagement during the
yaar and the Modaraba ls not subjeel b extemaly imposed canial regunaments,

The Modarsba is axpanencing accumidated lsses exceeding fifly percanl of the fotel emount subscribed by holders of the Modarsba Cedificabes. This siualion vioshes
Seclion Z3 of e Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floalaton and Cenlrol] Ordinance, 1980, To address Ihis iszoe, Ihe Modanba ook acien by obtarang 4 suboodingled
laan from The Bank of Punisb during the year anding Decamber 31, 2023, This subardirated loan Tkety prosided addifional capital bo the Moderabe, wiich coulnl help mitigats
I imepabcd, aif [he ccumdited ogses and bring il back inlo compliance wilh reguialony regurements.

44 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
44.1 Risk managemant poBcies

The Modarana's ciyective in menaging rizks i he creation and prolectian of Cerlificste hoiders” v, Risk (s inherent n 1he Modaraba's aciiities. hut i ranaged
theough & process of ongoirg identificaton, measuremant and manitaring. subject % risk limits snd oiher cantrals. The process of rsk management is criical tothe
Wedansha's conlinging profilabiliy. The Modaraba ' exposed to mavkel rish (atich incudes profi rabe rsk and prics risk], credil risk and liquidly risk arising from ihe
financial inslruments it holds.

Tha Modaraba primarily invasts in kease financing assals, dimmishing musharkah, morabaha and shar-lerm investments. Such invesiments are subject o vanying
degriees of rizk, which emanates from varous Tactors that induce but are net limied b

<Cradil Risk
“Liquidity Rigk
“Market Risk
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Credit risk
Gradit risk |s the Hss that the courter party to & finarcial irstrument wil cause a fnancial [oss far the Modaraia by faling fo dechange an ablgation. The Medaraba's
palicy I3 ba ender Inta financial contracts with repulable counder parties In accordanca with the intermal guidelnes and ragulatary requirements. The Modaraba seeks o
manage |ls credit fsk exposure through diverstfication af farsh activiles to avold undue concentrations of riske wih indhiduals or groups of customens [y spedfic
locadions of busiresses. Modarabe aleo obtains securty deoosils when appropriate. Cash at banks are held ony ith repuiable banks wilh high gualty credit
worlhiness.

Exposure to credit risk
Ther menimrain exposure b credil risk before any credil enhancermenls & of reporting diate is the carrying ameunt of the financal assels 25 561 o0l below:

2023 2
Hata Rupess. Rupaas
Larg term musharikah inwvesiment - sacurad B 450,544, 566 541,155,576
Larg lerm marabaha invesimant - sacurad 3 13,502,006 26,851 508
Long ferm deposits 10 207,444 203,444
Fhor beem morabaha imesiment - securad 12 173,447,518 157 495 554
Gurrenl salurily of kang e invesiment 13 369,755,575 328,375,145
L ranlal receivabia 14 111,362,665 144,571 558
Sher term rvasiments 15 350,000,000 206,000,000
Proft and other recevabias iv 145 812,637 108,568,156
Bank balances 12 L33, ZTLA6E 26,500,758

1, 8585,900,977 1,673 823,598

Gredit risk ratings and collaterals held
Bank balances

Thea credit figk rating of the banks and thair respactiee balances are given below:

23 2022

Rupees Fupees
Banks Short Term Larg Term Agency
The Baris of Punjab A+ At PACRA 14,296,269 23,682 562
A Baraka Bank [Pakiskan) Limiled Al At WIS 14,003 14,003
Maticrwal Bar of Pakstan A+ L1 PACRA i.ma7 1,797
MRSP Micrafinarcs Bark Liniled %, A PACRA 1,382,743 2,558,664
Bank Islam Pakistan Limited A1 LN PACRA 217,475,780 -
U Microfinence Bank Limied Al A FACRA 1885 -

233,172.483 26,587 ¥
Collaterals

The: Modaraia does nof hold any coliateral from the counter parties againgt balances with banks and these ane ursacarad, The assetz leased out by the Modarzta
under ljarah arangemeants ane secured a8 the Ht'e ko the asset B held by the Modaraba. Security deposits | lease key money |6 slen kept agairat thess arrangements,
Musharikah and marabaha mvestments are secured ageinst ragistered vehicles and egupment im the name of Modareba, persansl quareniees emd post dated
chagues.

Concerrtratian of credit risk

Corcaniration bs the retalive sensfuily of the Modaraha's peformance o developments aflacling 4 particutar rdustry or geographical lpcaton, Concantration of rfaks
anae when & numbar of fnanclal instruments or contracts are entered (o with the same counterpasty, or where 8 number of courtemparties ane engaged in smiar
business activties, or actiities in the same gecorepnic region, or have similar ecancmic features that would cause ther abilty to mest contraciual abligations o be
similary affected by changeas in economic, poliical or other conditians.

The Modaraba's portfolo of financial assels is broadly diversified and trarsactions ae arbared inle vl diverse credit worlhy counlerpartios thansty mitigating any
sigrificard conconlralion af coedil risk. Modaraba's cancenlralion af credil risk by ndusiral disiebation s delailed a5 follows

2083
ljarah Assets Marabaha Musharikah Tafal Bactorty
investments Investments

Anisfion and transpan 43,321,728 - &AW 358643 848 26%
Othars 8,518,840 26,646,298 205,933,446 241,098 584 1%
Teafile spinning and composite 100,200 217,584,601 2,146,390 219.830,9%1 16%
Inivicduals 42,883,977 31,500,000 172,085,755 246.569,732 |8%
Enginesing, sleed & sanslruclion 42,520,000 7,222,218 63,144,323 182885 541 13%
Sugar and dlied - 53,360,822 - 53,360,822 4%
Food and allied: 10,456,874 - 24,450,405 34,037,270 k4
Ol and gas = 14,887 445 7,870,500 22,758,346 2%
Chemical and pharmacsuticals 166,500 215,330 14,261,108 14,643 828 1%
Electic goads = 13,023,643 - 13,023,643 1%

148,068,220 434,840,348 BOS.245,048 1307, 753 616 00%
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Aghon and Irargpan

Others

Texfile spinning and composite
Individuals

Enginesring, steed & cansiruction
Suger and allisd

Food and allied

il and gas

Chemical and pharmacaucals
Electic goads

Ligquidity Risk

2022

ljarah Assals Morabaha Musharikah Tottal Soctord
invesimints |H\'B‘Sﬂ‘f_@ﬂl§i
B 835,751 . AT A8 314,106,565 3
16,286,315 40081 465 248,166,115 304544 055 19%
7547918 200,344 735 4,498,751 A0 §16 4%
74,500,240 31,500,000 Ba, 021,200 108,930 449 12%
42,520,000 76,388 BEs 45,767, 542 164 676,225 1%
- 77,855 5E4 - 7,065 554 5%
11,006,643 - 4,662,538 46,569 451 ki)
- 15,231 515 7212254 12 443,758 1%
280,140 215,320 13,629,408 4,324 058 1%
100,000 13,023 843 - 15,123 843 1%
237 096007 454 751,118 872,228,440 1,564 075,565 0%

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Modarstg il nol be able bo generale sufcient cash resources & sellle il obligaiions in full as they fall due or can ey do o an
terms (ot are materally disacvantagecis. [n the crie of Modarata, the liquidity level of Modarana remained an satistachony el dusing the year and hModaraia did
ot face any difficulty or problem for generaion of Aguidiy

Mitigating | managing the risk

Modaraha's policy is fo invest tha majorily of ils assets in invesimants Brat includes farm deposit and morabaha invesimants frat ame having short-lerm maturitias,
Criy @ bmibed proparian of its mvastmeants are af long-Sam in nalure

Condractual maturity of the financial assets and financial liabdities of the Modaraba:

Mon-darivative financial assats

Larg term musharikah inwvesiment-secunad
Marabaha invesimant - sacurad

Larg lerm dapcsits

larah renlal rectivabio

S e e siment

Pridt and olwr recenvabies

Cash and bark balances

Mon-derivative financial liabdites
Subordinated funds

Redeemable capital - parficipatony
and unsecured

Proft paysbla

Trade and othar payabilas
Unclaimed profil

Orrbalance sheet gap

Mon-derivative financial assets

Larg term musharikah invessment-secunsd
Marabaha investment: - sacanad

Larg term daposits

fareh rantal receivabie

Shart berm Fvasiment

Diepasits and alhar recesvalbilas

Cash and bark galandes

Mor-darivative financial liabdlites
Redasmabila capital - parfidpatory and
unsecured

Profl payabie

Trade and olher payabies

Unclaimed profit

Or-balance sheet gap

FLFE]
Carrying Contractueal | Six mondhs or less|  Six to twelve | Two to five years Orver five
Amoumt cash flow mignths s
Rupees Rupees Rupess Rupees Rupees Rupees
Bk, 245,048 B05.245,048 154,889,530 191,810,952 113,248,188 145,296,378
447 BE5 515 247,805,515 415,553,307 11,166,696 21,065,512 -
203,444 207444 - - . 203,444
189,621,155 189,621,155 189,621,156 . . -
350,000,000 350,000,000 350,000,000 - -
215,478,820 215,478 820 5,478 620 - . -
233,544 857 233,544 957 233 544 857 - . a
L1 97883 2241878939 1,558,187, 760 202877 648 134,313,700 345,499 832
SinD, 06D, 0060 500,000,008 - - 500,000,000 =
1485,000,000  1,405,000,000 = - 1,485,000,000 -
103,300, 796 103,300,798 103,300, 796 - . -
7,148,200 67,148,200 7,148,200 - . -
17,190,485 17,190,485 17,190,485 = . -
LITZ639481 1171639461 187,639,481 . 1,%85,000,000 -
59,330,458 68339458 1,371,548, 288 202,977 642 {1,850,686,300) 345,498,522
K]
Carrylng Amount | Conlractugd cash | Six months arless | Six 1o fweive T o five years | Over five yeas
flaw mantis
Rupeas Rupges Rupees Rupees Rupesas Rups=as
prz2aeaeg  HTREIBAND 137,046,085 183,125.779 455,257,450 85,594,226
AT0,251.512 470251512 437,325,159 4,750,014 26,861,506 =
203,444 203,444 438,630,902 - - 203,444
2E3,2H,011 223238011 223,735,011 - -
208,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 - -
118,524,790 118,524,785 118,524,798 - -
26,673,787 26675, TET 26,675, 787 - . -
11122893 1,911.122.993 1,145,026,574 197 875,753 482 118,956 88,101 670
125,000,000 1.825.000.000 1,825,000, 000 - -
8,098,745 26.096,745 28,096,745 - . -
17477301 17477301 17,477,301 - -
17,191,276 17191276 7,191,276 - ; -
1,887 765322 1887765302 1 BT, TES, 222 - -
3,357 671 23 357,671 (T42,738,748) 107 875,753 482,118,956 88,101,670
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444  Market Risk

The riak thal falr value or fulure cash fiews of @ fnancial instrument will fucluate bacause of changes In market prces. The objective of marke: rak management ks &0
manage and cantrol market risk exposures withn acceptable parameters, while optimizng the retum an dak, Market rsk comprise of three types of risks: cumancy
righ, profit J yield rebe rizt and price fsk. The Modarsba manages markel risk by manitoring s financal instruments as per the intemal sk managamant policies. The
Madaraba is exposed to profit ! yield rate risi anly.

4441  Currency risk

Currancy rigk is the risk fhat e fair value ar fulurs cash fowe of a finencial instrament il flucluzta due fo the changes In faregn currency axchange rates. The
Madarsba dees net heve any fimarcial instrument in curencees other than the functioral curency of the Modarabe. theredfare, the Modaraba & not subject @ currancy
Fish.

4442 Price risk
Price risk ks the sk that (he fair value or fisare cash flows of @ francial instrument wil *uciuate & a resull of changes in mane) prices (alher han hase ansing Gom
Inbarest rate risk of currency risk). The Modarabe doas nod hae any invesiment raded in the marked, thenefore the Modaraba |s nof subjest fo price risk

The fai values of fraded insfrumants ane based on quoled market prices. Fair value of fulure lease financing nslaliments receivable agains lease linancing assets,
alhe aseds, ohir Rbiilies and ciher ilemes cannol be caloutalid wilh sullicient reliabilty du o atsence of current aclie merked Tor such assels ard Rabillics

4443  Prodit rate risk

Proft rate Agk anses from the effects of fluctuatians in the prevaling levels of marke: profit rates on e falr value of financial assets and liabilges snd fulure casn
fows. The Modaraba has jarsh lease, mushanikah and morebaha financirg porfioio. Tie majanity of financing partfolia is inied with KIBOR rate 8s a benchmark. The
Madaraba reviews KIBOR on financing portfolic an quarterly / six momthly bas=. As of repariing date, the profile of the Modaraba's verisble value fnancial instruments

werg as follows:
2023 2022
Aszels Moles Rupees Rupees
Variable rate ingtruments
Mussharikah financing 805,245,048 Y2 2E8 440
Banik deposits 22 551,331 5,055,065
Shart ferm Investments 350,000,000 200,300,000

1,377,796,379 1,077,263 505

Fixed rate instruments

Waorebaha finencing 434,440,348 454,751,118
1812 236,727 1 552,084 623

Liabdities
Fixed rate instrumants
Readeemabie capital - paricipatary and unsecured 1,485,000,000 1.885,000,000
Subordinabed lunds 500,000,000 -

1,585,000,000 1,825,000,000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A incraase af 100 basis points in interest rates would have increased [ decreased the orofit end loss by the amounts shown belaw. Reduciion in interest rates by 100
basis poinis would have 8 vice versa impact. Thfz analysis assumes that all veriables ramain constant. Tha analysis is performed on the same basis for the

comparaihe period
I_Alutfﬂahllhyclxl-jhnvlrlg variable imterest rates) I Incraase | (Decraasa) I Changa in the profif § (lass)] I
202 2022
Assots Rupees Fupees
Musharkah Rnancirg + 100 basis poirks B,052 450 BTI2284
Bank deposits + 100 basis poirts 2,225 513 5 551
Short term investments + 100 basis points 3,500,000 2,000,000
13,777,963 10,772 H35

Aliwe sensiiviies are calculated on the assumnplion thal sl factors semain constan except inlerest rales and sesuting variation In falr values af the subjgated
Inesiments and impact on the profi and loss.
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44.44

Rigk Management | Mitigation

The Modarsia merstars (he inlerest rale enviconment on & reguss basis and dters the portfale mix of fived and Noating teke securiies. The Modaraba's policy
requines the Modaraba management fo manage (s sk by measuding the mismsich of the interest rale sensitvily gap of francial assets and labiilies and cakiialing
Ihe average curaban of te portfolo of Faed mlerest secisilies, The average efaclive durabin of the Modsraba's portfolo |s & messure of the sensitivey of the far
value of the Modaraba's varable imerest sacunities to changes In marke! ineres! rates, The Maocarana's palicy refraing from holding interest baarng inglaments that
induee the average effeciive dusation of the varkabla intenes: portfalio 1o pRss the benchmark of the avesage duration.

Operational risk

Ciperational risk iz the rigk of direct or indirect loss anising from a aige vanety of causes asaociated with the procassas, lechnology and infrestnicture supporting fre
Modaraba's operations either internally wiiin the Modarana ar exbemally at the Modarabe's servica provicers, and from extamal feciars other than cedi, market end
liquedity risks such as those ansing from legal emd regulatary requiraments and generally accepted standards of investment maragemsant benavior. Operational risks
anse fiom &l of the Modarabe's activities. The Modarabe's obiecitee & o manage cperational risk 5o es @ balance limiting of finencial lcsses and damage o ils
reputation with achievirg ite objective of ganeratng returns far certificate holdars. The primery respans iniity for the davelopment and ‘mplamentation of controls ouer
apersfional risk rests with the Board of Direclors of the Modaraba Managamenl Moderslba. This respansioiity encompasses tha conlrals in the followng ereas:

= Requiremens for aporopriate seqragation of dities between various functions, rkes and responsbiities;

- Requirements for tha raconciliatian and mondtoring of transactions:

- Comalanca with ragulatory and ofher laga’ requiremens;

- Requiremnents for e pe'ladt. arscesarnint of aperafional rsks faced, and the ACE U al conlrals and procedures to address the risks idenlified,
- Etnical and business standards, and

- Rish mifigalion, including taksful whara this is effactiva.
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Restated

2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupess
48 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Loss before income tax and levies for the year {153,305,002) (61,344 401)
Adjustments for non cash other items;
Depraciation of fjarah assats 51 85,524 307 133,479,201
Depreciation of asssts in own use 52 1,538,885 1,252,538
Amartization of mtangible asssls 6.2 666,643 2Ty, 150
{Gain} { Ioss on disposal of jarah asseis 33 (3,604,014) 422 103
(zain on disposal of assets in own use 33 11,000,000) [32,500)
ain on disposal of subsidiary 34 (8,987,000) =
Pravision for gratuity 24.2 2,789,118 2,191,087
Wirite off of lax refund due from government - 3404 552
{Reversal) | Provision for musharikah investment (1,668,373) 1,894,879
{Reversal) { Provision for morabaha investment (9,044,500) (2,750,000)
{Revarsal) { Provision for [farah rental receivables (408,563) 4,897 502
{Reversal) | Provision for other receivables 57,360,693 (1,172 649)
Dividend recened - (4,319 384)
Accrual of profit on bank deposis 34 (63,355,147) [29,883,391)
Bank charges 36 312,935 189,905
Financial charges on musharikah financas 36 - 186,055
Financizl charges on redeemable capital and subordinated funds 36 358,077,961 220,300,804
418,204,945 336,048 4493
Operating profit before working capital changes 264,899,942 254,704,092
Working capital changes:
(Increase)idecrease in operating assets:
ljarah rental recevablas - ned 14 33,617,856 51,151,412
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other recenvables 17 (78,442 575) (3.524 16T)

(44,824,719 47 627,245
Increase | {decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade and ather payables 29 | 48397969 ||  (60.323,634)]
48,397,969 [60,323,634)

Met changes in operating assets and operating liabilities 3,573,250 (12,696, 389)
Cash generated from operations 268,473,192 242,007 703

42 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The follewing information is based on the latest un-audited fingncial statements of the fund:

Size of the fund 9,963,403 7,673,147
Todal assets 10,033,403 7,973,147
Cost of investments 8,963,403 7,573,147
Fair valua of investments 8,963,403 7573147
Percentage of investments made 22% 19.5%

The break-up of fir value of investments i as follows:
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Percentage of the Rupeos Percantage of Rupees

size of the fund the size of the
fund
Investment in listed debt securities Ti% 7,528 485 0%
Invesimant in unlisted debt sacuntes 0% - 0% -
Investmant in lisied equity securities 0% - 0% -
Bank balancas 24 2,434,918 100% 7573147
1007% 9,963,403 100% 7573147

Invesimanls out of provident fund have been made In accordance with (he provizions of saclions 218 of (ha Comganies Act, 2017 end the rules
formulated for this purpasa.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Figures of the correspanding pericd have been reclassified, wherever necessary for comparison and betler presentation. Major rectassifications made
duiriig (e yesr are as [ollows:

From To December 31,
M2
Rupaas

Long term marabaha investment Shoet lerm morabaha investment- sacured 14,066,000
Unearned incame of shor term morabeha Unearned incame of long term Morabaha nvestmant 6,400,062
investment

Long term defered morabaha income Shoet tarm defarred morabaha income 1,224 BES
Shor term morabgha invesiment-secursd Long term Morabaha Invesiment - securad 16,000,000
Short tarm morabaha nvesiment-securad Long lerm marabaha investment - secured 1,905,226
Olher recemvable Provident fund receivable 327 85
Providant fund payable Provident fund receivable 3458
Wehicle [Accumulated depreciation) - ljarah Plant and machinery {Accurmulated depreciation) - ljarah 4,408 BET
Equipment {Cost) - owned Furniturg and fisture (Cast) - owned 29,60
Equipmenl (Accumulated depraciabion) - owned Furnilure and fixture (Accumulated depreciation) - cwnad 11,193

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR [SSUE

The financial statements of Modaraba were approved by e Board of Directars of Modarata Managemen: Company and authorized for issue on June 24, 2024

For Punjab Medaraba Services {Private) Limited
{Modaraba Company}

ﬁ‘."_,—; il i
:’%\; i R Ry - %g

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOA DMRECTOR DHRECTOR
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Managed By:
Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt) Ltd.

PABX :+(92-42)36365191 - 93

Add : Office No.100, 3rd Floor, National Tower,
28-Egerton Road, Lahore-Pakistan
Website : www.punjabmodaraba.com.pk




